
 TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor John Anderson 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
Councilmember Michelle Cordes 
Councilmember Judy Hughes 
 
 
Monday, April 1, 2019 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
April 1, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Tara Walter __, John Anderson__, Bill Hawkins__, Karen Wall____, 

Kristen Larsen___, Michelle Cordes__, Judy Hughes ___. 
     

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction 
of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review 
a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of 
the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public 
unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
   

6. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
 

a. Public Hearing to receive citizen’s comments on rezoning from Neighborhood Office (NO) 
to Highway Business (B-2) for 470 South Main Street, Florence, Arizona, APN 202-09-0010; 
and second reading of Ordinance No. 671-19: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
THE HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL (B-2) ZONE CHANGE LOCATED AT 470 
SOUTH MAIN STREET, APN 202-09-0010 (PZ-19-15). (Larry Harmer) 
 

b. Proclamation declaring the week of April 7 - 13, 2019 as National Library Week in the Town 
of Florence. (Mayor Walter)  
 

c. Proclamation declaring April 2019 as Promise for the Future Month. (Mayor Walter) 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
 
7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 

the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  
 
a. Approval of an amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Lantis 

Productions, Inc. (dba Lantis Fireworks and Lasers) increasing the total contract to 
$36,000. (Bryan Hughes) 
 

b. Approval of a contract with Zumar Industries Inc. to purchase various street, warning and 
informational signs as well as poles and pole accessories for all signage within the Town 
of Florence Town limits using the MCDOT Co-operative Contracts, Serial 16136-C and 
Serial 14105-C, in an amount not to exceed of $60,000 (include a ratification of 
$29,338.02). (Chris Salas)  
 

c. Proclamation declaring April 2019 as Fair Housing Month. (Jennifer Evans) 
 
d. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending February 28, 2019, in the amount of 

$2,258,477.17. (Becki Guilin) 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Resolution No. 1692-19: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF TOWN 
OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR 
TARA WALTER, TOWN MANAGER BRENT BILLINGSLEY, AND INTERIM FINANCE 
DIRECTOR BECKI JIMENEZ TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE TRANSACTION OF 
BUSINESS ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE BANKING ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. (Lisa Garcia)  
 

b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to modify the existing contract with Apache 
Underground, utilizing Pine-Strawberry Waterline Replacement and Water Facilities 
Improvement Construction Work – Job Order Contract, dated October 18, 2018, for CIP 
WU-38 Water line replacement, in an amount not to exceed $1,314,779.20. (Chris Salas)  
 

9. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 
 
10. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

11. DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

a. Community Development  
b. Community Services 
c. Courts 
d. Finance 
e. Fire 
f. Police 
g. Public Works 

 
12. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
13. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public 
body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(1)(A)(3), (A)(4) and 
(A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 
 

a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 16-002, including 
appellate proceedings to reviewing courts.  

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 
Superior Court: Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325. 

c. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 
Superior Court: Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325 including those 
actions related to said litigation as authorized by Ordinance. No. 592-13. 

d. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Pinal County 
Superior Court: Johnson Utilities, LLC, v. Town of Florence S-1100-CV-201900383  
including those actions related to said litigation. 

e. Town Council duties and responsibilities in a Town Manager-Council form of government. 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3).  One or more members of Council may appear for part or all of the meeting including 
Executive Session telephonically.  
 
POSTED ON MARCH 27, 2019, BY MARIA HERNANDEZ, DEPUTY TOWN CLERK, AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6a.  

MEETING DATE:   April 1, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Larry C. Harmer 
                                     Community Development Director               
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 671-19: Rezoning from Neighborhood 
Office (NO) to Highway Business (B-2) for 470 South Main Street 
(PZ-19-15) Public Hearing 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Ordinance No. 671-19: PZ-19-17 Rezoning Request        Meeting Date: April 1, 2019   
Page 1 of 4 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public Hearing to receive citizen’s comments on rezoning from Neighborhood Office (NO) 
to Highway Business (B-2) for 470 South Main Street, APN 202-09-0010; and adoption 
of Ordinance No. 671-19:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL (B-2) 
ZONE CHANGE LOCATED AT 470 SOUTH MAIN STREET, APN 202-09-0010 (PZ-19-
15).  
 
OVERVIEW: 
The property owner is desirous of establishing zoning on his property that is better suited 
to the existing use and to the orientation of the property to the ‘business route’ designation 
of Highway 79/South Main Street.  The existing structure contains three suites; one of 
which is currently occupied by a barber shop.  The reaming two suites are available for 
lease. 
 
The Town 2020 General Plan shows Land Use categories as non-site specific, allowing 
flexibility of underlying zoning.  The subject parcel is generally designated as Downtown 
Mixed Use (DMU) in the General Plan.  The DMU designation is primarily intended to 
assist with the revitalization of older areas and to provide for a mix of highway-oriented 
retail goods and commercial services for commuters, workers and residents.  
 
 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 671-19: PZ-19-17 Rezoning Request        Meeting Date: April 1, 2019   
Page 2 of 4 

Analysis: 
The proposed rezoning site consists of one parcel.  It is situated fronting Main Street, also 
known as Business Loop State Route 79.  The lot is currently zoned Neighborhood Office 
(NO).  The properties in immediately adjacent to the subject parcel are zoned as follows: 

 North across 20th Street – Highway Business Commercial (B-2) 
 East across Main Street – Highway Business Commercial(B-2) 
 South – Neighborhood Office (NO) 
 West across the alley – Single-Family Residential (R1-6) (Note that this property 

is owned by the Town of Florence and contains the historic Florence Water Tower.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FINDINGS: 
Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed zoning is consistent with the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan, 

specifically the Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) designation. 
 

2. The proposed zoning and development of the site should facilitate ongoing 
revitalization and redevelopment efforts along Main Street and Business Loop  
State Route 79 Corridor. 

 

MAP OF AREA



Subject:  Ordinance No. 671-19: PZ-19-17 Rezoning Request        Meeting Date: April 1, 2019   
Page 3 of 4 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council Public Hearings was 
mailed to all property owners within three hundred (300) feet of the site.  Property posting 
for notice of public hearings was posted on site and advertisements in the local paper  per 
Town requirements.  Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section-462.04 and Town 
of Florence Development Code, a public hearing is required for a Zone Change.  
 
A Citizen Participation meeting was held on February 28 at the Town of Florence 
Community Development Building at 224 West 20th Street.  Staff notes that as of this 
writing, no public comments have been received. 
 
The tentative Planning and Zoning Commission/Town Council meeting schedule for this 
application is as follows: 
 
March 7, 2019                Planning and Zoning Public Hearing 
 
March 18, 2019   Town Council Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
 
April 1, 2019    Town Council Public Hearing and Action 
 
All public hearings will be held at Town Hall Council Chambers – 775 North Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona 85132. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Approval of the rezoning request will broaden the scope of potential sales tax producing 
uses available to be placed on the property. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission finds that the proposed Zone Change for APN (PZ-
15-17-ZC) is in compliance with the Town’s 2020 General Plan and therefore 
recommends that a favorable recommendation be forwarded to the Town Council for this 
Zone Change, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development of the subject site shall be in conformance to any applicable Town 

Codes and Ordinances. 

2. Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to Proposition 
207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the blank waiver attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 

3. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Ordinance No. 671-19 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 671-19: PZ-19-17 Rezoning Request        Meeting Date: April 1, 2019   
Page 4 of 4 

 Exhibit “A” 
 Staff Report 
 Power Point Presentation 

 
 



 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  671-19 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL (B-
2) ZONE CHANGE LOCATED AT 470 SOUTH MAIN STREET, APN 
202-09-0010 (PZ-19-15).   

 
WHEREAS, a request to change the existing zoning on the subject properties 

from Neighborhood Office (NO) to Highway Business (B-2) has been proposed and a 
public hearing has been held by the Planning and Zoning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has found the Zone Change is 

in conformance with the 2020 Town’s General Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded the Mayor and 

Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, a favorable recommendation for the Zone 
Change, subject to certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Mayor and Council of the 

Town of Florence, Arizona, and the recommended Zone Change has been found to be 
appropriate and further found to promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents 
of the Town and its orderly growth. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
The Zoning Map of Florence Arizona is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
classification of the parcels of land depicted on EXHIBIT A attached hereto, from 
Neighborhood Office (NO) to Highway Business Commercial (B-2), subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The development of the subject site, as described in Exhibit A attached, shall be in 

conformance to any applicable Town Codes and Ordinances. 
 

2. Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 
Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence this1st  
day of April 2019. 

      ______________________________  
      Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

470 South Main Street, APN 202-09-0010 (PZ-19-15) 

Changing the zoning classification of the parcels of land depicted on Exhibit A from 
Neighborhood Office (NO) to Highway Business (B-2).  

 

 



470 South Main Street Zone Change  
PZ-19-15 

March 7, 2019 
1 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

March 7, 2019 
Agenda Item 5A 

 
 

Project Name: Celaya Zone Change  

PZ-19-15 

Prepared By:  Larry Harmer 

    Community Development Director 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUEST: 
 
A Zone Change request by Alfred Celaya to change the zoning on approximately .21 
acres, located at the southwest corner of Main Street and 2th Street, from Neighborhood 
Office (NO) to Highway Business Commercial Zoning District (B-2). (APN 202-09-0010). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The property owner is desirous of establishing zoning on his property that is better suited 
to the existing use and to the orientation of the property to the ‘business route’ designation 
of Highway 79/South Main Street.  The existing structure contains three suites; one of 
which is currently occupied by a barber shop.  The reaming two suites are available for 
lease. 
 
The Town 2020 General Plan shows Land Use categories as non-site specific, allowing 
flexibility of underlying zoning. The subject parcel is generally designated as Downtown 
Mixed Use (DMU) in the General Plan. The DMU designation is primarily intended to 
assist with the revitalization of older areas and to provide for a mix of highway-oriented 
retail goods and commercial services for commuters, workers and residents.  
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The proposed rezoning site consists of one parcel.  It is  situated fronting Main Street, 
also known as Business Loop State Route 79.  The lot is currently zoned Neighborhood 
Office (NO).  The properties in immediately adjacent to the subject parcel are zoned as 
follows: 
 

 North across 20th Street – Highway Business Commercial (B-2) 
 East across Main Street – Highway Business Commercial(B-2) 

 



470 South Main Street Zone Change  
PZ-19-15 

March 7, 2019 
2 

 

 South – Neighborhood Office (NO) 
 West across the alley – Single-Family Residential (R1-6) (Note that this property 

is owned by the Town of Florence and contains the historic Florence Water Tower.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed zoning is consistent with the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan, 

specifically the Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) designation. 
 

2. The proposed zoning and development of the site should facilitate ongoing 
revitalization and redevelopment efforts along Main Street and Business Loop  
State Route 79 Corridor. 

 
 
 
 
 

MAP OF AREA 



470 South Main Street Zone Change  
PZ-19-15 

March 7, 2019 
3 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing was mailed to all 
property owners within three hundred (300) feet of the site.  Property posting for notice of 
public hearings was posted on site and advertisements in the local paper  per Town 
requirements.  Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section-462.04 and Town of 
Florence Development Code, a public hearing is required for a Zone Change.  
 
A Citizen Participation meeting was held on February 28 at the Town of Florence 
Community Development Building at 224 West 20th Street. 
 
Staff notes that as of this writing, no public comments have been received. 
 
The tentative Planning and Zoning Commission/Town Council meeting schedule for this 
application is as follows: 
 
March 7, 2019                Planning and Zoning Public Hearing 
 
March 18, 2019   Town Council Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
 
April 1, 2019    Town Council and 2nd Reading/Action 
 
All public hearings will be held at Town Hall Council Chambers – 775 North Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona 85132. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the proposed Zone Change for APN (PZ-15-17-ZC) is in compliance with 
the Town’s 2020 General Plan and therefore recommends that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission forward to the Town Council a favorable recommendation for this Zone 
Change, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development of the subject site shall be in conformance to any applicable Town 

Codes and Ordinances. 

2. Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to Proposition 
207 [A.R.S. §12-1134] pursuant to the blank waiver attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 

3. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

Attachments: 
 Draft Ordinance 
 Exhibit “A”  



Celaya Zone Change
PZ‐19‐15 

Town of Florence Council

March 18, 2019



Case PZ‐19‐15 Rezoning 

• Property located at 470 S. Main Street

• APN# 202-09-0010

• Rezone from Neighborhood Office (NO) to
Highway Business Commercial (B-2)

• .21 acres



Exhibit A





Public Outreach 

Forms of outreach:
• Mailed notice to those within 300 ft.   

• Advertisement posted in local newspaper

• Public Notice sign on site

• Citizen Review Meeting February 28, 2019

• Planning and Zoning Commission Public 
Hearing March 7, 2019



Findings

Proposed rezoning is consistent with the 
2020 General Plan 

Rezoning should facilitate ongoing 
revitalization and redevelopment along Main 

Street  



Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends 
approval subject to conditions:

• The development of the subject site shall be in 
conformance to any applicable Town Code and 
Ordinances.

• Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in 
value pursuant to Proposition 207.

• Any Additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town 
Council.



Questions?



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jasper Halt, Library Manager 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject: National Library Week Proclamation   Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019  
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:    National Library Week Proclamation  2  Reading 
Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and 

Infrastructure  Statutory      None 

 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclaim the week of April 7 - 13, 2019 as National Library Week in the Town of 
Florence and encourage all residents to visit the library and explore library collections, 
services, and programs. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
First sponsored in 1958, National Library Week is a national observance sponsored by 
the American Library Association (ALA) and libraries across the country each April. It is 
a time to celebrate the contributions of our nation's libraries and librarians and to 
promote library use and support. 
 
For the past 22 years, the Florence Community Library has celebrated National Library 
Week through its annual bookmark contest, which draws participation from K – 12 
students throughout the Florence Unified School District.  This year’s Bookmark Awards 
Ceremony, recognizing the winners of the competition for each grade level, will be held 
on Wednesday, April 10.  The library also offers a variety of programs and activities 
throughout the year, with activities for all ages. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 



Subject: National Library Week Proclamation   Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019  
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
National Library Week Proclamation 



 
 
 

NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK 2019 
April 7 – 13, 2019 

 
WHEREAS, libraries are not just about what they have for people, but what they do for 

and with people; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries have long served as trusted and treasured institutions, and library 
workers and librarians fuel efforts to better their communities, campuses and schools; and 
 

WHEREAS, librarians are leaders in their institutions and organizations, in their 
communities, in the nation and in the world; and 
 
 WHEREAS, librarians continue to lead the way in leveling the playing field for all who 
seek information and access to technologies; and look beyond their traditional roles and provide 
transformative opportunities for education, employment, entrepreneurship, empowerment and 
engagement, as well new services that connect closely with patrons’ needs; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries and librarians lead their communities in innovation, providing 
STEAM programing, Makerspaces and access and training for new technologies; and 
  

WHEREAS, libraries are pioneers supporting democracy and effecting social change, 
with a commitment to providing equitable access to information for all library users regardless of 
race, ethnicity, creed, ability, sexual orientation, gender identity or socio-economic status; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries lead in working with diverse communities, including people of color, 
immigrants and people with disabilities, offering services and educational resources that 
transform communities, open minds and promote inclusion and diversity; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries, librarians, library workers and supporters across America are 
celebrating National Library Week. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I Tara Walter, Mayor of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, do hereby proclaim April 7 – 13, 2019 as “NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK” and 
encourage all residents to visit the library this week and explore what’s new at your library, and 
engage with your librarian. Because of you and our library leaders, Libraries Transform.  

 
In witness thereof, I hereby set my hand and affix the Official Seal of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this 1st day of April 2019. 

          __________________________ 
          Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6c.  

MEETING DATE: April 1, 2019   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject:  Promise for the Future Proclamation                                                                      Meeting Date:  April 1, 
2019  
Page 1 of 1 

STAFF PRESENTER:   Mayor Tara Walter 
 
SUBJECT: 2019 Promise for the Future Proclamation  

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclamation declaring April 2019 as Promise for the Future Month.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Ms. Evelyn Casuga, Senior Advisor, Community Relations, Office of the President, 
Central Arizona College, has requested that the Town of Florence issue a proclamation 
to raise awareness that the Central Arizona College Foundation Promise for the Future 
scholarships provide affordable higher education to our students; and urge everyone to 
consider supporting the Central Arizona College Foundation Promise for the Future to 
create a sustaining legacy for students to achieve their full potential with a tuition-free 
post-secondary education at Central Arizona College. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 



Subject:  Promise for the Future Proclamation                                                                      Meeting Date:  April 1, 
2019  
Page 1 of 1 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Promise for the Future Proclamation 



 

 
PROMISE FOR THE FUTURE MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence recognizes the value of higher education and adopted 

the Education Progress Meter and the Achieve60 Attainment Goal, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence supports completion of post-secondary education by 

its students to reach their fullest potential, grow local talent and improve economic sustainability 
for the community; and 

 
WHEREAS, Central Arizona College is the only post-secondary institution in Pinal 

County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Central Arizona College Foundation created the Promise for the Future 

scholarship for Pinal County high school graduates to earn a tuition-free education at Central 
Arizona College by agreeing to and fulfilling requirements from eighth grade through high school 
graduation; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Central Arizona College Foundation Promise for the Future scholarship 

fund is reliant on contributions from individuals, businesses, corporations, governments, and 
non-profits;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tara Walter, Mayor of Town of Florence, Arizona, proclaim the month of 
April as PROMISE FOR THE FUTURE MONTH, to raise awareness that the Central Arizona 
College Foundation Promise for the Future scholarships provide affordable higher education to 
our students; and urge individuals, businesses, corporations, government, and non-profits to 
consider supporting the Central Arizona College Foundation Promise for the Future to create a 
sustaining legacy for students to achieve their full potential with a tuition-free post-secondary 
education at Central Arizona College. 
 
Issued this 1st day of April 2019. 
              
        Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a.   

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes, Community Services 
                                      Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  4th of July Freedom Fest Fireworks  Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT:  Professional Services Agreement – Lantis Fireworks

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of an amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Lantis 
Productions, Inc. (dba Lantis Fireworks and Lasers) increasing the total contract to 
$36,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town has utilized Lantis Fireworks and Lasers for several years to provide fireworks 
for the annual Fourth of July Freedom Fest. 
 
Last year, the Town issued a Request for Proposals, which indicated a multiyear 
agreement may be considered based on qualifications and experience.  The Town 
entered into a professional services agreement with Lantis for the 2018 fireworks display 
for $18,000. 
 
This amendment to the 2018 professional services agreement will allow us to continue to 
contract with Lantis for an additional year for an additional $18,000, bringing the two-year 
total to $36,000.  The original contract was within the Town Manager’s purchasing 
authority.  This amendment increases the total contract, which exceeds the Town 
Manager’s authority and requires Town Council approval. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Staff would need to re-advertise for the services. 



Subject:  4th of July Freedom Fest Fireworks  Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town would continue the professional services agreement for one more year.  In fall 
of this year, staff will issue a new request for proposals for future years. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
$18,000 for fireworks was included in the Fiscal Year 2019 budget and already paid 
following the 2018 event. 
 
$18,000 for fireworks for the 2019 Fourth of July Freedom Fest is to be paid from Fiscal 
Year 2020 budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Lantis Productions, Inc. Professional Services Contract  
Request for Proposals – 4th of July Fireworks Show (2018) 
Contract Amendment #1 
 











1 
 

Request for Proposals 

Town of Florence 

Fourth of July Fireworks Show 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Florence 

P.O. Box 2670 

775 North Main Street 

Florence, Arizona 85132 

Issued: January 22, 2018 
 

Contact: Alison Feliz, Recreation Coordinator- alison.feliz@florenceaz.gov 



2 
 

NOTICE AND REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS TOWN OF FLORENCE 
 

Request for Proposals 
4th of July Fireworks Show 

 
 
Solicitation Number: – 4th of July Fireworks Shows 
Submittal Deadline: February 16, 2018 by 12:00 p.m. (local Arizona time) 
Submittal Location: Town Clerk’s Office 775 N. Main Street or PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ  85123 
Question Deadline:  February 2, 2018 
General or RFP Process Questions/ Contact Person: Alison Feliz at alison.feliz@florenceaz.gov or 
(520)868-7585 
 
RFP Firework Documents available at: www.florenceaz.gov/rfp 

 
Date and Location for Submittal of Sealed Proposals:  Notice is hereby given that sealed 

Proposals will be received at the Town of Florence Clerk’s Office, Town Hall, 775 North Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona 85132 until 12:00 p.m. (Arizona time) on Friday, February 16, 2018, for the 4th of 
July Fireworks Show. Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked on the outside 
with “4th of July Fireworks Show” and the solicitation number (Fireworks Show). Any Proposal 
received after the time specified will be returned unopened. It is the Proposer’s responsibility to assure 
Proposals are received at the above location on or before the specified time. Late proposals will not 
be considered. 

 
One (1) original and three (3) copies of the bid/proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope with 
the proposal name, proposal number, proposer’s name and address clearly indicated on the envelope.  
All proposals must be submitted in ink or typewritten.  No oral, telegraphic, electronic, facsimile, 
or telephonic proposals or modifications will be considered unless specified.  Additional instructions 
for preparing an offer are provided within the RFP. 

 
4th of July Fireworks Show:  The Town of Florence (“Florence” or “Town”) is seeking proposals 
from qualified firms who have experience in providing fireworks and pyro technicians for fireworks 
display. Annually the Town presents a fireworks display for its 4th of July celebration. The fireworks 
are viewed by thousands of citizens. The description of the 4th of July Fireworks Show is set forth in 
the Proposal Documents (the “RFP” or “Request for Proposals”) available at www.florenceaz.gov/rfp.  
A multiyear contract may be considered based on qualifications and experience. 
 
Proposal Requirement:  Each Proposal shall be in accordance with the Proposal requirements, set 
forth in the Request for Proposals, which may be downloaded from www.florenceaz/gov/rfp or 
obtained by contacting “contact person” at (520) 868-7585 or alison.feliz@florenceaz.gov. Any 
Proposal which does not conform in all material respects to the Request for Proposals will be 
considered non-responsive and rejected. Vendor is responsible for obtaining any amendments either 
through updates on the website, or by contacting the person cited above for general questions. 

  

A multiyear contract may be considered based on qualifications and experience.



3 
 

Right to Reject Proposals: Notwithstanding any other provision of this RFP, The Town of Florence 
expressly reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals, or portions thereof; and/or waive any defect 
or informality in a Proposal; and/or reissue an RFP; and/or exercise any other rights available to the 
Town under the terms of the RFP, the Town Code, law, or equity; and/or to withhold the award of 
the RFP for any reason the Town determines. 

Proposer Questions:  All questions regarding the contents of this solicitation, and solicitation process 
(including requests for ADA accommodations), shall be directed solely to the Project contacts listed 
on the RFP cover page, or designees.  Questions shall be submitted in writing via email.  Questions 
received after the Questions Date and Time Deadline above may be answered at the sole discretion 
of the Town. 

 
Addenda/Clarifications:  Any changes to the solicitation specifications will be in the form of an 
addendum.  Addenda are  posted  at  www.florenceaz.gov/rfp.  The Town shal l  not be held 
responsible for any oral representations or statements relating to the solicitation specifications made 
by an employee, agent or officer of the Town.  Failure to acknowledge receipt of any addendum by 
Proposer may result in disqualification of that Proposer’s proposal in the sole discretion of the 
Town. 

 
Execution of Contract:  No contract or agreement, express or implied, shall exist or be binding on 
the Town before the execution of a written contract by both parties. If agreement on the terms of a 
resultant contract cannot be reached after a period deemed reasonable by the Town in its sole 
discretion, the Town may negotiate and enter a contract with any other Proposer/proposer who 
submitted a timely, responsive and responsible proposal to this RFP. 

 
Terms:  The terms “Proposer”, “Offeror”, “Vendor”, “Offerors”, and “Bidder” may be utilized 
interchangeably in the provisions of this solicitation and the Proposal Documents.  The Town and 
Proposer may be referred to in this Contract collectively as the “parties” and each individually as a 
“party”. 

 
Equal Opportunity:  T h e  T o w n  o f  Florence is an equal opportunity employer. Minority and 
women’s business enterprises are encouraged to submit Proposals on this solicitation. 

 
 
DATED:                                                                     TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 

 
 

Town Clerk 



 

4 
 

 

IMPORTANT 
PROPOSER’S SUBMITTAL 

CHECK LIST 
 

It is the Proposer’s responsibility to be familiar with all requirements and 
specifications: 

 
1. The Proposal has been signed in the Proposer’s Offer Section. (Proposals not 

signed in this section will not be considered.) Authorized Signature Form is 
enclosed. Addenda have been reviewed and signed and are included. 

 
2. The Proposal amount offered (if applicable) has been reviewed. 

 
3. A detailed description of the firework show is included. 
 
4.  Return deviation/compliance certification 
 
5.  Return Offer Sheet 
 
6. Return reference sheet 
 
7. Return “Demonstrating Lawful Presence” Form 

 
8.  W-9 Form is complete and included. 

9.  The mailing envelope/package has been 

addressed to: Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
775 N. Main Street 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 
10. Proposal Package/Envelope has been identified with Proposer’s name and Proposal 

number  4th of July Fireworks Show. 
 
11. The Proposal is submitted and stamped in by Clerk’s Office representative no 

later than specified time on designated date. (Otherwise the Proposal cannot be 
considered.)  

 
 

 

 

PROPOSAL 
DOCUMENTS FOR: 

THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 



 

5 
 

4th OF JULY FIREWORKS SHOW 
 
These terms will be the general contract conditions for any contract entered into as a 
result of the RFP and are incorporated therein and shall be fully binding upon the 
Proposer. 

 
 
I. REQUIREMENTS FOR PROPOSERS. 

 
1.1    Proposal Opening Date and Location:  Sealed Proposals will be received at 

the Town of Florence Clerk’s Office, Town Hall, 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 
85132 until 12:00 p.m. (local Ar iz ona time) Thursday, February 16, 2018, at which 
time the Proposals will be opened and publicly read. Late Proposals will not be accepted 
or considered by the Town. 

 
1.2  Proposal Documents Available:  The Proposal Documents consist of: (1) 

Requirements for Proposers; (2) Special Conditions; (3) Proposer’s Proposal (form); (4) 
Compliance Certification(s) (form) (5) Offer Sheet (form) (6) Demonstrating lawful 
Presence (form) and (7) Reference (form). The Proposal Documents are available for 
downloading from www.florenceaz.gov/rfp at no charge or by contacting Alison Feliz, at 
alison.feliz@florenceaz.gov, and may be obtained upon request. 

 
1.3     Incorporation of Proposal Documents:  All of the Proposal Documents apply 

to and become a part of the terms and conditions of the Proposer’s offer/proposal. The 
resultant contract between the Town and the Proposer shall include the: (1) RFP, including 
instructions, all terms and conditions, specifications, scope of work, attachments, any 
amendments thereto, any contract documents, and the Proposal Documents; and (2) the 
offer submitted by the Proposer in response to the RFP only to the extent it is consistent 
with the RFP terms and contract documents.  All previous contracts between the Proposer 
and the Town are not applicable to this contract or other resultant contracts. Any award to 
a Proposer will be subject to a selected Proposer entering a services contract provided by 
and acceptable to the Town of Florence.  

 
1.4 Proposer’s  Proposal  Form:    Proposals  must  be  submitted  only  on  the  

Proposer’s Proposal form. All Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly 
marked “Proposal for 4th of July Fireworks Show - Solicitation Fireworks Show, Office of 
the Town Clerk.” 

 
1.5 Florence’s Right to Reject Proposals:  Notwithstanding any other provision 

of this RFP, the Town expressly reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals, or portions 
thereof; and/or waive any defect or informality in a Proposal; and/or reissue an RFP; 
and/or exercise any other rights available to the Town under the terms of the RFP, the 
Town Code, law, or equity; and/or to withhold the award of the RFP for any reason the 
Town determines. 

 
1.6  Execution of Contract: No contract or agreement, expressed or implied, shall 

exist or be binding on the Town before the execution of a written contract by both parties. 
If agreement on the terms of a resultant contract cannot be reached after a period deemed 



 

6 
 

reasonable by the Town in its sole discretion, the Town may negotiate and enter a contract 
with any other Proposer who submitted a timely, responsive and responsible proposal to 
this RFP.  

 
1.7 Additional Investigation: The Town reserves the right to make such 

additional investigations as it deems necessary to establish the competence and financial 
stability of any Proposer submitting an offer. 

 
1.8 Prior Experience: Experiences with the Town and entities that the evaluation 

committee members represent may be taken into consideration when evaluating 
qualifications and experience. 

 
1.9 Cost of Proposal: The Town shall not reimburse the cost of developing or 

providing any response to this RFP and development and provision of any offer shall be at 
the respective Proposer’s sole cost. Offers submitted for consideration should be prepared 
simply and economically, providing adequate information in a straightforward and concise 
manner. 

 
1.10 Late Proposals: Late submittals and/or unsigned proposals will not be 

considered under any circumstances. Envelopes containing Proposals with insufficient 
postage will not be accepted by Florence.  It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to 
see that his/her proposal is delivered and received by the proper time and at the proper 
place. 

 
1.11 Proposal  Amendment  or  Withdrawal:    A proposal may be withdrawn any 

time before the Proposal due date and time. A proposal may not be amended or withdrawn 
after the proposal due date and time except as otherwise provided by applicable law. 

 
1.12 Public Record:    All proposals submitted in response to this solicitation and 

all evaluation related records shall become property of Florence and shall become a matter 
of public record for review, subsequent to proposal award. Request for nondisclosure of 
data such as trade secrets and other proprietary data, must be made known in writing to 
Florence in proposals submitted, and the information sought to be protected clearly marked 
as proprietary. Florence will not insure confidentiality of any portions of the proposal that 
are submitted in the event that a public record request is made. The Town will provide 48 
hours’ notice before releasing materials identified by the proposal as confidential or 
proprietary in order for the Proposer to apply for a court order blocking the release of the 
information. 

 
1.13 Persons with Disabilities:   Persons with a disability may request a reasonable 

accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by contacting the Clerk’s Office. 
Requests shall be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 

 
1.14    Proposal Acceptance Period:  All proposals shall remain open for 90 days 

after the day of the opening of proposals, but the Town may, at its sole discretion, release 
any proposal and return the proposal security (as applicable) prior to that date. No Proposer 
may withdraw his proposal during this period without written permission from the Town.  



 

7 
 

Should any Proposer refuse to enter into a contract, under the terms and conditions of the 
procurement, the Town may retain the security (as applicable), not as a penalty, but as 
liquidated damages. 

 
1.15 Addendum: This Request for Proposals may only be modified by a 

written Addendum.  Potential Proposers are responsible for obtaining all addenda. 
 

1.16     General Evaluation Standards:  T h e  T o w n  o f  Florence is seeking 
proposals from qualified firms who have experience in providing fireworks and pyro 
technicians for fireworks displays. The Town will be the sole judge of whether the 
proposals offered are acceptable. 

 
1.16.1 Deviations. Any deviations from General Evaluation Standards 

c o n t a i n e d  i n  s e c t i o n  1 . 1 6  o r  r e q u i r e d  c o n t e n t  
u n d e r  s e c t i o n  1 . 1 7 . 5  may render the proposal non-
responsive. 

 
1.16.2  Disqualification.    A  Proposer (including each of its principals) 

who is currently debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully 
prohibited from any public procurement activity may have its 
proposal rejected.  The Proposer will be required to submit 
documentation demonstrating lawful presence in the United States 
pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 by completing the 
Demonstrating Lawful Presence form provided by the Town.  

 
1.16.3 Waiver and Rejection Rights.  The Town reserves the right to  

  reject any or all proposals or to cancel the solicitation altogether, to 
  waive any informality or irregularity in any  proposal received, and 
  to be the sole judge of the merits of the respective proposals  
  received. 

  
1.17 Proposal Preparation: 

 
 1.17.1  Format.  Proposers shall submit their proposal with an original and 

three (3) copies and shall be submitted either on the forms provided in this 
solicitation or their substantial equivalent. Any substitute document must be 
legible and contain the same information requested on the forms. 

 
  1.17.2  No Facsimile or Electronic Mail Proposals.  Proposals may not be 

submitted in facsimile or electronically. All facsimile or electronic mail 
proposals shall be rejected. 

 
 1.17.3  Typed or Ink Corrections.  The proposal shall be typed or in ink. 

Erasures, interlineations or other modifications in the proposal shall be 
initialed in ink by the person signing the proposal. 

 
 1.17.4  No Modifications.  Modifications shall not be permitted after 

proposals have been opened except as otherwise provided under applicable 



 

8 
 

law. 
 

1.17.5  Content.  The proposal shall contain all of the following information: 
 
Proposal Amount. The proposal amount for the Fireworks Show shall 

be listed in the Proposal Section. Upon receipt and acceptance of goods or 
services, the Proposer shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for 
payment from the Town within (30) days and pursuant to any resultant 
contract for services provided by the Town. Provide evidence of possessing 
necessary permits and licenses for the proposed fireworks display in the 
Town.  

 
Description of proposed display. Fireworks Materials – quantity, quality, 
diversity, and size of materials. Fireworks Display Narrative / Worksheets 
(Provide Digital Media if available) - Provide a narrative description of the 
proposed fireworks display which includes the order in which shells are to 
be fired and any proposed laser technology, if applicable. Note:  The 
inclusion of laser technology is not a requirement of this proposal. 

 

Brief description of the Proposer/Experience/Qualifications. Provide a brief 
history of your firm, including addresses for all locations and years in 
business. Identify the key individuals that would be committed to this 
program, including the head pyro technician and assistant pyro technician.  
Head and assistant pyro technician must possess an appropriate number of 
years of experience and fired displays, which clearly demonstrates 
competency in this field.  Identify number of displays fired, of the size and 
nature of the displays proposed in the scope of work herein, within the 
previous 12 months, by the head pyro technician (or for any head pyro 
technician who could be assigned to this contract). Provide an organizational 
chart identifying the key personnel, including qualifications, job titles, duties 
and responsibilities, and reporting relationships. Identify three (3) references 
for which similar work has been performed, including the name of the 
contract, contact name and telephone number, and type of operation. Identify 
any sub Proposers, if any, you might propose to use in the operation and their 
specific qualifications. Identify and describe any accidents or violations the 
firm or individual employees have been involved in while performing 
firework services. Provide the firm’s safety policy / plan. Provide copies of 
either a Shooter Card or Fire Certification. 

 

Tax ID Number.   Proposer shall provide its Arizona Transaction Privilege 
Tax Number and/or Federal Tax Identification number in the space provided 
in the Proposal Section.  A Town of Florence Sales Tax Number, if 
applicable, must also be supplied. 

 

 
 1.17.6  Solicitation  Addendum  Acknowledgement.    Each  Solicitation  

Addendum shall be acknowledged in the proposal Section, which shall be 
submitted together with the proposal by the proposal deadline. Failure to 
note a Solicitation Addendum may result in rejection of the proposal. 



 

9 
 

 
1.17.7  Evidence of Intent to be Bound.  The proposal form submitted shall 
include a signature by a person authorized to sign the proposal. The offer 
sheet shall be submitted. Failure to submit verifiable evidence of intent to be 
bound, such as an original signature, shall result in rejection of the 
proposal. 

 
1.17.8  Non-Collusion  and  Non-Discrimination.  By signing and 
submitting the Proposal, the Proposer certifies that: 

 
A. The Proposer did not engage in collusion or other anti-competitive 

practices in connection with the preparation or submission of its 
proposal; and 

 
B. The Proposer does not discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment or person to whom it provides services 
because of race, color, religion, age, sex, national origin, or 
disability, and that it complies with all applicable Federal, state and 
local laws and executive orders regarding employment. 

1.18 Inquiries: 
 

1.18.1  Duty to Examine.   It is the responsibility of each Proposer to 
examine the entire Solicitation, seek clarification (inquiries), and 
examine its proposal for accuracy before submitting the proposal. 
Lack of care in preparing a proposal shall not be grounds for 
modifying or withdrawing the proposal after the proposal due date 
and time, nor shall it give rise to any contract claim. 

 
1.18.2  Contact Person.  Any inquiry related to a solicitation, including any 

requests for or inquiries regarding standards referenced in the 
solicitation should be directed solely to the contact person listed on 
the cover page of the Solicitation. The Proposer shall not contact or 
direct inquiries concerning this solicitation to any other Florence 
employee unless the solicitation specifically identifies a person 
other than the Contact Person as a contact. 

 
1.18.3 Submission of Inquiries.   All inquiries shall be submitted in writing 

and shall refer to the appropriate solicitation number, page and 
paragraph.  Do not place the solicitation number on the outside of 
the envelope containing the inquiry, since it may then be identified 
as a proposal and not be opened until after the proposal due date and 
time. The Town shall consider the relevancy of the inquiry but is not 
required to respond in writing. 

 
1.18.4  Timeliness. Any inquiry or exception to the solicitation shall be 

submitted as soon as possible and should be submitted at least 5 days 
before the proposal due date and time for review and determination 
by Florence. Failure to do so may result in the inquiry not being 



 

10 
 

considered for a Solicitation Addendum. 
 

1.18.5  No Right to Rely on Verbal Responses.    A Proposer shall not rely 
on the Town verbal responses to inquiries. A verbal reply to an 
inquiry does not constitute a modification of the solicitation. 

 
II. SPECIAL CONDITIONS. 

 
2.1 Length of Program:  The 4th of July fireworks display shall be at least 20 

minutes in length. 
 

2.2 Music:   If the Town secures a music/radio sponsor, the Proposer will be 
required to work closely with the music/radio sponsor to coordinate the music selection, 
which will include a variety of patriotic and contemporary music, with the fireworks 
display.  All music must be reviewed and approved by Town of Florence staff prior to the 
event.   

 
2.3 Sound:  If music is made part of the display, the Town will provide the 

equipment necessary for playing music and a professional sound system for the audience.    
 

2.4 Fireworks Display:  The display will be fired from the designated area as 
determined by the Town either electronically or manually as long as both processes meet 
all regulatory requirements.  In addition, the Town may be agreeable to the inclusion of 
laser technology in the program.  The display shall include both a distinct opening and a 
distinct closing portion.  Shells used in the display shall be approved as to size by the 
Florence Fire Department and shall range from 3-12 inches in size and include low-level 
fireworks.  Shells do not need to be preloaded. Proposer may propose fireworks that vary 
from the size specified.  However, it is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to propose a 
display that is site appropriate and is in compliance with all regulatory requirements.   

 
2.5   Display and Discharge Criteria:  The fireworks display shall be conducted in 

accordance with the latest edition of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 
Standard 1123, Code for Fireworks Display and related requirements for firing a display.  
All unfired fireworks shall be covered or protected during firing.  Any shell not properly 
fired shall be disposed of in accordance with applicable regulations. 

 
All fireworks material shall be clearly marked, indicating the type of shell and shall 

be delivered to the site on the day of firing. A representative of the Town of Florence and/or 
Florence Fire Department shall conduct inspection and inventory of the fireworks shells at 
least six (6) hours prior to the display being readied for firing. The firing time for the 
display shall be 8:30 P.M. dependent upon darkness and weather conditions. Arrangements 
will be made for access to the firing site prior to July 4th, as requested by the Proposer. 

 
The Proposer shall provide necessary safety equipment, and all tools and materials, 

including, but not limited to mortar racks, lumber and stakes, etc., which may be required 
for the firing of the display. The Town will provide the Proposer with containers and sand.  
In addition, the Town will close down the designated area for the event. Fire extinguishers 
of appropriate classification and approved as operational shall be accessible and in plain 



 

11 
 

view from the time the fireworks arrive on site until all fireworks are completely removed 
from the site. A Firework display worksheets explaining exactly which shells will be fired, 
and the amount must be completed and submitted with the proposal. 

 
2.6 Inclement Weather:  The decision to cancel or postpone the fireworks display 

due to inclement weather shall be made by the Town of Florence. If the display is canceled, 
the Town of Florence will pay the Proposer its 'Actual Expenses' related to preparation for 
the unsuccessful displays on July 4, 2018. 'Actual Expenses' shall include expenses for 
travel, lodging, labor, meals, rentals, permits, setup and dismantling of the display, and any 
other expenses related to the unsuccessful attempts to present the display on the Original 
Date. 

 
2.7 Condition of Site: The Proposer shall be responsible for removing all firing 

materials, large debris, packing materials, etc., and for filling all holes utilized for firing of 
the displays.  All holes left unattended as a result of postponement of the display shall be 
marked with safety ribbon or cones. The Town of Florence will be responsible for picking 
up small debris (e.g. confetti).  Removal of all materials shall be completed within three 
hours after the firing of the display. The Proposer shall walk the fallout zone of the 
fireworks site the following morning beginning at 6:00 A.M. and shall be responsible for 
the removal of any unexploded shells and to assist in the cleanup of debris. 

2.8 Ground Protection:  The Proposer shall provide protection to minimize damage 
to the area caused by the firing of shells. 

 
2.9 Storage:  The Proposer shall assume all responsibility and liability in connection 

with the storage of fireworks and/or firing materials. 
 

2.10 Permits and Licensing:  The Proposer shall obtain all required permits and 
licenses from the Town of Florence necessary to conduct a fireworks display in the Town 
of Florence.  Proposer shall be responsible for any associated fees. 

 
2.11 Crowd Control:  The Town shall provide personnel at the fireworks site for 

crowd control and site security. 
 

2.12 Proposer Responsibility: The Proposer is the Prime Proposer for purposes of 
this contract and shall be responsible for completely supervising and directing the setup 
and discharge of the fireworks displays. Sub Proposers who perform work under this 
contract shall be responsible to the Prime Proposer. The Prime Proposer agrees that it is as 
fully responsible for the acts and omissions of its sub Proposers and of persons employed 
by them as it is for the acts and omissions of its own employees. 

 
2.13 Taxes:  The Proposer shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes 

required by the laws of the place where fireworks displays are performed. Taxes to be paid 
by the Proposer shall include, but shall not be limited to, the Town Of Florence Business 
and Occupational License Tax if applicable. Proposer’s obligations under this section shall 
survive the expiration or other termination of this contract. 

 
2.14 Substitute Shells:  The Proposer may not substitute shells for the shells listed 

on the display worksheet without prior written approval of the Town of Florence. 



 

12 
 

  
 2.15 Labeling of Shells:  Each shell shall be specifically labeled and inventoried 
for easy review and identification by the Town representative(s). 
 

2.16 Compliance with Town Code:  The Proposer shall comply with all applicable 
provisions of Chapter 112.42 of the Florence Town Code. 

 
2.17 Insurance. 

 
2.17.1 Liability Insurance.   Proposer shall maintain commercial general 

liability insurance covering actions by Proposer providing for a limit of not less than 
$2,000,000.00 single limit, bodily injury and/or property, agents and employees as 
additional insured. 

 
2.17.2 Adequacy of Insurance.  Town makes no representation or warranty 

to Proposer that the amount of insurance to be carried by Proposer under the terms 
of this contract is adequate to fully protect Proposer’s interests.  Proposer 
acknowledges that Town shall not, by the fact of approving, disapproving, waiving, 
accepting, or obtaining any insurance, incur any liability for or with respect to the 
amount of insurance carried, the form or legal sufficiency of such insurance, the 
solvency of any insurance companies or the payment or defense of any lawsuit in 
connection with such insurance coverage, and Proposer hereby expressly assumes 
full responsibility for all liability, if any, with respect to, Proposer’s insurance 
coverage. 

 
2.17.3 Certificate.  Upon execution of the resulting contract, Proposer shall 

deliver to Town a certificate of insurance and endorsements evidencing the 
coverage required by this Section. 

 
2.17.4 Risk Management/Additional Insured.   Proposer is primarily 

responsible for the risk management of its services under this contract, including 
but not limited to obtaining and maintaining the required insurance and establishing 
and maintaining a reasonable risk control and safety program. Town reserves the 
right to amend the requirements herein at any time during the contract. Proposer 
shall require any and all sub Proposers to maintain insurance as required herein 
naming Proposer and Town as “Additional Insured” on all insurance policies, except 
Worker’s Compensation, and this shall be reflected on the Certificate of Insurance 
and endorsements. The Proposer’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance 
with respect to all other available sources. Coverage provided by the Proposer shall 
not be limited to the liability assumed under the Indemnification provision of this 
contract. To the extent permitted by law, Proposer waives all rights of subrogation 
or similar rights against Town, its representatives, agents, and employees. All 
insurance policies, except Workers’ Compensation required by this Agreement, and 
self-insured retention or deductible portions, shall name, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law for claims arising out of the performance of this contract, Town, 
its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees as Additional 
Insureds. The Town reserves the right to require complete copies of all insurance 



 

13 
 

policies required by this contract at any time.   Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies as required by this contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material 
breach of contract. 

 
2.18   Indemnification:  The Proposer shall at all times indemnify, keep 

indemnified, defend and save harmless Town and any of is mayor, councilmembers, 
officials, representatives, volunteers and employees from any and all claims, demands, 
suits, actions, proceeding, loss, cost and/or damages of every kind and description 
including any attorney’s fees and/or litigation expenses which may be brought or made 
against or incurred by Town on account of loss of or damage to any person or for injuries 
to or death of any person caused by, arising out of, or contributed to, in whole or in part , 
by reason of any alleged act, omission, professional error, fault, mistake, or negligence of 
the Proposer, its employees, agents, representatives, or  subcontractors, their employees, 
agents  or representatives in connection with or incidental to the performance of this 
contract or arising out of Worker’s compensation claims, Unemployment Compensation 
claims, or Unemployment Disability Compensation claims of employees of the Proposer 
or its subcontractors or claims under similar laws or obligations.  The Proposer’s 
obligations under this paragraph shall not extend to any liability caused by the sole 
negligence of Town or its employees. 

 
In the event that any action or proceeding shall at any time be brought against Town 

by reason of any claim referred to in this Section, the Proposer, at Proposer’s sole cost and 
upon at least 10 day’s written notice from Town shall defend the same with counsel 
acceptable to Town, in Town’s sole discretion.  The Proposer’s obligations under the 
Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this contract. Insurance provisions 
set forth in this contract are separate and independent from the indemnity provisions of this 
section and shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope of the magnitude of this 
Indemnification, nor shall this Indemnification be construed in any way to limit the scope, 
magnitude or applicability of the insurance provisions.   

 
 
 
II. PROPOSER’S PROPOSAL 

 
3.1 Proposer’s Proposal:  For the proposal opening January 22, 2018 for the 
4 t h  of July Fireworks Show. 

 
3.2 Conditions Accepted:  The undersigned Proposer declares that before 

preparing this proposal, he or she has read the Proposal Documents (RFP) carefully, and 
that this proposal is made with full knowledge of the RFP requirements. By signing this 
proposal, proposer agrees to all conditions contained in the Proposal Documents. 

 
3.3 Proposal Amount: For the terms set forth in Paragraph 3.2 above: 

Proposers offers to provide the services for a total in the amount of: 
 

       (Enter Proposal price in writing) _________________(“Proposal Amount”) 
 

3.4      Acceptance:  Proposer proposes and agrees that if this proposal is accepted, 
he or she will enter into a contract with Florence within fourteen (14) days after Florence’s 



 

14 
 

acceptance of this proposal at the listed Proposal Amount. 
 

3.5 Affidavit:  The  following  affidavit  is  submitted  by  the  Proposer  as  
part  of  this 

Proposal:  
 
 The undersigned deponent, of lawful age, being duly sworn upon his oath, deposes and 

says: 

1. The he/she has lawful authority to execute the within and foregoing Proposer’s 
proposal. 

2. That the Proposer has not directly or indirectly entered into any agreement , 
express or implied, with any Proposer or Proposers, having for its object the 
controlling of the price or amount of such proposal or proposals, the parceling 
out to any Proposer or any other person of any part of the subject matter of the 
proposal or proposals or the profits thereof, and that he/she had not and will not 
divulge the sealed proposal to any other person whatsoever, except those having 
a partnership or financial interest with him and said Proposer, until after the 
sealed proposal or proposals are open. 

3. That Proposer has received any Addenda issued. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Name 
 
      __________________________ 
      Title 
   

  



 

15 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA) 
    )SS 
County of Pinal            ) 
 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED  AND  SWORN  TO  before  me  this _____ day  of_____________, 
20______, by________________________________________. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Notary 
_______________________ 
My Commission Expires: ___________________ 



 

1  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

The SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between ____________ 
and the Town of Florence, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (“Town”), effective as of _________ 
Town and the Vender may be referred to in this Agreement collectively as the “parties” and each individually 
as a “party”.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations contained 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, Vendor and Town agree as follows: 
 
Scope of Services:  Vendor shall provide the Services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" (the "Services" or “Scope of Services”, or “Program”). All 
work shall be reviewed and approved by Town's Contract Administrator to determine acceptable 
completion. Review and approval by the Contract Administrator shall not relieve Vendor of any liability 
for improper, negligent or inadequate Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
Fees:  The amount paid to the Vendor under this Agreement, including reimbursable expenses, shall not 
exceed ________.  Vendor shall be paid in full within 30 days of the completion of the Program. 
 
Termination for Convenience:  Town has the right to terminate, suspend or abandon this Agreement 
for cause or convenience, or to terminate any portion of the Services which have not been performed by 
the Vendor. Town may terminate this Agreement, or any part thereof for its sole convenience, at any 
time without penalty or recourse. Vendor shall receive payment for Services satisfactorily completed and 
accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Scope of Services 
and schedule for payment.   
 
Independent Contractor:  It is understood that Vendor shall be an independent contractor with respect 
to Services provided under this Agreement, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint 
venturer, agent, or to have any other legal relationship with Town. As an independent contractor, Vendor 
shall: (a) have discretion in deciding upon the method of performing the Services provided; (b) not be 
entitled to worker’s compensation benefits from the Town; (c) not be entitled to any Town sponsored benefit 
plan; (d) shall select the hours of his/her work; (e) shall provide her/his own equipment and tools; and(f) to 
the extent required by law, be responsible for obtaining and remaining licensed to provide the Services.  
Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, Town shall not be responsible for the payment of any 
taxes, permit fees or licenses incurred or required by Vendor in order to perform Services under this 
Agreement. Vendor understands that the Vendor is responsible to pay, according to law, the Vendor's 
income tax, and this may include Vendor's self-employment, social security, and other taxes. As an 
independent contractor, Vendor is responsible for providing all workers' compensation insurance required 
by law. Vendor shall be solely responsible for the acts and omissions of its officers, agents, servants, 
and employees. 
 
Cancellation of Agreement:  This Agreement is subject to cancellation by Town pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Subject to allocation of fault, the Vendor shall at all times indemnify, keep indemnified, defendant save 
harmless Town and any of its Mayor, council members, officials, officers, from any and all claims, demand, 
suits, actions, proceedings, loss, costs and/or damages of every kind and description caused in whole or 
in part by Vendor acts or omissions or those of parties for whose conduct Vendor is responsible, including 
any attorney’s fees and/or litigation expenses which may be brought or made against or incurred by Town 
on account of loss or damage to any property or for injuries to or death of any person caused by, arising 
out of, or contributed to, in whole or in part, by reason of any alleged act, omission, professional error, fault, 
mistake, or negligence of the Vendor, its employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors, their 
employees, agents or representatives in connection with or incidental to the performance of this Agreement 
arising out Workers’ Compensation claim,  Unemployment Compensation Claims, or Unemployment 
Disability Compensation claim of employees of the Vendor or its subcontractors or claims under similar 



 

2  

laws or obligations.  The Vendor’s obligations under this paragraph shall not extend to any liability caused 
by the negligence of Town or its employees. 
 
In the event that any action or proceeding shall at any time be brought against Town by reason of any claim 
referred to in this Section, the Vendor, at Vendor’s sole cost and on at least 10 days written notice from 
Town, shall defend the same with counsel acceptable to Town, in Town’s reasonable discretion.  The 
Vendor’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement   Insurance provisions set forth in this Agreement are separate and independent from the 
indemnity provisions of this Section and shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and magnitude 
of this indemnification, nor shall this indemnification be construed in any way to limit the scope, magnitude 
or applicability of the insurance provisions. 
 
Vendor liability hereunder is limited to the portion of fault attributed by the fact finder to Vendor, who 
shall make separate special verdicts on total damages and the proportional fault.   
 
Notice:  Unless otherwise provided herein, demands or notices under this Agreement will be in writing and 
will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of services if personally 
delivered to the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the 3rd day after the date of the postmark 
of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or certified postage prepaid and properly addressed 
according to the party's place of business as set forth herein. 
 
Insurance: 

A. The Vendor shall provide and maintain and cause any subcontractors to provide and maintain 
appropriate insurance. In no event shall the total coverage be less than the minimum insurance 
coverage specified below: 

 
1. Commercial General Liability in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 

per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) general aggregate. 
2. Automobile Liability in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence. 
3. Statutory Workman’s compensation. 

 
B. The Vendor shall name Town, its Mayor, council members, agents, officers, representatives, 

officials, volunteers and employees as additional insureds and shall specify that the insurance 
afforded by the Vendor shall be primary insurance and that any insurance coverage carried or 
self-insurance by Town, any department or employee shall be excess coverage and not 
contributory insurance to that provided by the Vendor. Said policy shall contain a severability of 
interest provision. Town reserves the right to continue payment of premium for which 
reimbursement shall be deducted from amounts due or subsequently due Vendor. 

 
C. Failure on the part of the Vendor to procure and maintain the requested liability insurance and 

provide proof thereof to Town within ten (10) days following the commencement of a new policy, 
shall constitute a material breach of the Agreement upon which Town may immediately terminate 
this Agreement. Within ten (10) days of signing this Agreement, the Vendor shall furnish the 
Town with copies of the Certificate of Insurance and Endorsements drawn in conformity with the 
above insurance requirements. Town reserves the right to request and receive certified copies of 
any or all of the above policies and endorsements. 

 
D. The Vendor agrees to comply with statutory requirements for both workers' compensation and 

unemployment insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement. A Certificate of Insurance 
for workers' compensation coverage shall be provided within ten (10) days of signing this 
Agreement. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against Town, its Mayor 
and Council members, its officers, representatives, officials, volunteers, agents, and employees 
for losses arising from Services performed by the Vendor for Town. 

 



 

3  

E. The Vendor is primarily responsible for the risk management of its Services under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to obtaining and maintaining the required insurance and 
establishing and maintaining a reasonable risk control and safety program. Town reserves the 
right to amend the requirements herein at any time during the Agreement subject to at least (5) days 
written notice. The Vendor shall require any and all subcontractors to maintain insurance as 
required herein naming Town and Vendor as "Additional Insured" on all insurance policies, 
except Worker's Compensation, and this shall be reflected on the Certificate of Insurance. The 
Vendor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to all other available 
sources. Coverage provided by the Vendor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
Indemnification provision of this Agreement. To the extent permitted by law, Vendor waives all 
rights of subrogation or similar rights against Town, its Mayor and council members, officials, 
agents, representatives, officers, volunteers and employees. All insurance policies, except 
Workers' Compensation required by this Agreement, and self-insured retention or deductible 
portions, shall name, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, Town, its Mayor and council members, agents, representatives, 
officers, directors, officials, volunteers and employees as Additional Insureds. Town reserves 
the right to require complete copies of all insurance policies and endorsements required by 
this Agreement at any time. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this 
Agreement, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach of contract. 

 
COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and each originally 
executed duplicate counterpart of this Agreement shall be deemed to possess the full force and effect 
of the original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on all of the 
parties. The parties agree that this Agreement may be transmitted between them via facsimile. The 
parties intend that faxed signatures constitute original signatures and that a faxed Agreement containing 
the signatures (original or faxed) of all the parties is binding upon the parties. 
 
CONSTRUCTION:  The terms and provisions of this Agreement represent the results of negotiations 
between the parties, each of which has been or has had the opportunity to be represented by counsel 
of its own choosing, and neither of which has acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, 
economic or otherwise. Consequently, the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted 
and construed in accordance with their usual and customary meanings, and the parties each hereby 
waive the application of any rule of law which would otherwise be applicable in connection with the 
interpretation and construction of this Agreement that ambiguous or conflicting terms or provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed against the party whose attorney prepared 
the executed Agreement or any earlier draft of the same. 
 
DISPUTES, GOVERNING LAW:  Should any dispute, misunderstanding or conflict arise as to the terms 
or provisions contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to Town, and Town shall 
determine the term or provision's true intent and meaning. This Agreement shall be deemed to be made 
under, shall be construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties and 
supersedes all previous representations, written or oral, with respect to the Services specified herein. 
The Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a written document, signed by authorized 
representatives for each party. 
 
LICENSES:  Vendor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and Local licenses and permits 
required for the operations of the business conducted by Vendor and the Services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 
 
PERMITS AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  Vendor, shall, without additional expense to Town, be responsible 
for obtaining any necessary licenses and permits and for complying with any applicable Federal, State, 
County and Municipal Laws, codes and regulations in connection with the execution of the work, provision 
of Services and provision of materials. 



 

4  

 
NON-EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES:  The rights and the remedies of Town under this Agreement are not 
exclusive. Town shall be entitled to offset against any sums due to Vendor, any expenses or costs incurred 
by Town, or damages assessed by Town concerning Vendor's non-conforming performance or failure to 
perform the Agreement, including costs and damages incurred by Town. 
 
SURVIVAL:  All warranties, representations and indemnification by Vendor shall survive the completion, 
expiration, or termination of this Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Vendor and Town have caused this document to be executed by their 
duly authorized representatives, this    date of    , 2018. 
 
 
REVIEWED:      AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:        By:        
 Community Services Director    Town Attorney 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE:     VENDOR: 
 
 
By:        By:        
 Town Manager/Deputy Town Manager 
 























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7b.  

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject:  Zumar Industries Contract for signage  Meeting Date: April 1, 2019   
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to enter into a contract with Zumar Industries Inc. to purchase various street, 
warning and informational signs as well as poles and pole accessories for all signage 
within the Town of Florence Town limits using the MCDOT Co-operative Contracts, Serial 
16136-C and Serial 14105-C, in an amount not to exceed of $60,000, with a ratification 
of $29,338.02. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town currently has an inventory system of all the in-place signs as well as back stock 
of signs warehoused at the Public Works campus.  Signs are needed to replace sun-worn 
signs that are no longer reflective enough for night visibility and for immediate 
replacement of signs that are damaged.   
 
The Town is also working on replacing all the U-channel poles with the currently Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) approved square, break away poles. The square break-
away poles are proven to cause less damage to vehicles when impacted. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Another year of sun damaged signs with low reflectivity and a limited inventory of new 
signs; falling further behind in replacing U-channel poles with the breakaway square 
poles. 
 

SUBJECT:  Zumar Industries Inc. contract to purchase various 
signs, poles and pole accessories for all signage using the 
MCDOT Co-operative Contracts, Serial 16136-C and Serial 
14105-C,  

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships     Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 



Subject:  Zumar Industries Contract for signage  Meeting Date: April 1, 2019   
 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Enable the Town of Florence to replace damaged signage throughout the Town and keep 
a usable inventory on hand. Continue upgrading the U-channel poles with the square, 
break away poles. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to contract with Zumar should not exceed $60,000, with a ratification of 
$29,338.02. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Exhibit 1 – Maricopa County Solicitations  
Exhibit 2 – MCDOT Cooperative Contracts: 16136-C, expiring     
                  9/30/19 and expiring and Serial 14105-C, expiring     
                  1/31/20 
Exhibit 3 – Approved Bid Tabulation Form 
Exhibit 4 - Town of Florence Contract with Zumar Industries 
 











































































































































































































































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7c.  

MEETING DATE: April 1, 2019   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject:  Fair Housing Proclamation                                                                                  Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019  
Page 1 of 1 

STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst  
 
SUBJECT: 2019 Fair Housing Proclamation  

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclamation declaring April 2019 as Fair Housing Month.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
All recipients of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds must certify they 
affirmatively further fair housing. Declaration of this proclamation is required each year 
for the Town of Florence to continue to receive CDBG funds. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
2019 Fair Housing Proclamation 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAIR HOUSING PROCLAMATION 
 

 WHEREAS, the Civil Rights Act of 1968, commonly known as the Federal Fair 
Housing Act and the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, prohibit discrimination in the 
sale, rental, leasing and financing of housing or land to be used for the construction of 
housing or in the provision of brokerage service on the basis of: race, color, religion, sex, 
disability, familial status or national origin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 1986 and 1988 Federal Fair Housing Acts declare that it is a 
national policy to ensure equal opportunities in housing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, April has traditionally been designated as Fair Housing Month in the 
United States. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tara Walter, Mayor of the Town of Florence, Arizona, do 
hereby proclaim April as Fair Housing Month in the Town of Florence, and do hereby urge 
all residents of this community to comply with and show their support for the letter and 
spirit of the Fair Housing Acts. 
 
Issued this 1st day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
              
        Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 





























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a.  

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject: Resolution No. 1692-19 Signatories   Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1692-19: Signatories on Accounts 
 

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adoption of Resolution 1692-19:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING MAYOR TARA WALTER, TOWN 
MANAGER BRENT BILLINGSLEY, AND INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR BECKI 
JIMENEZ TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON 
ALL TOWN OF FLORENCE BANK ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
A resolution must be adopted naming staff authorized to sign on the Town’s bank 
accounts.  New signature cards need to be completed.  This resolution will add Interim 
Finance Director as the appointed signatories for banking functions.  
 
The following accounts are included: National Bank of Arizona General Checking 
Account, National Bank of Arizona Payroll Account, Local Governmental Investment Pool 
#7, Local Governmental Investment Pool #5, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company Inc. Investment 
Account.  This resolution will be effective April 1, 2019.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

A no vote would mean that the Town of Florence would not have a financial signatory for 
banking purposes.  
 



Subject: Resolution No. 1692-19 Signatories   Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

A yes vote would me that Town of Florence would have three signatories for banking.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1692-19 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  1692-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR TARA WALTER,     
TOWN MANAGER BRENT BILLINGSLEY, AND INTERIM FINANCE 
DIRECTOR BECKI JIMENEZ TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE 
TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
BANKING ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   

 
 WHEREAS, The Town of Florence has appointed Becki Jimenez as Interim 
Finance Director.  The Town requires she be added as signatory to all Town banking 
accounts, and     

 
 WHEREAS, The Town Council must approve new signature authorizations for 

the Town’s bank accounts. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Mayor Tara Walter, Town Manager 
Brent Billingsley, and Interim Finance Director Becki Jimenez are authorized as 
signatories for the following bank accounts: 
 

1. National Bank of Arizona - General Checking and Investment Accounts 
2. National Bank of Arizona Payroll Checking Accounts 
3. Zions Bank – Community Facility District Accounts 
4. Wells Fargo – Community Facility District Accounts 
5. State of Arizona Local Governmental Investment Pool-All Accounts 
6. Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. Investment Accounts 
7. PFM Investment Accounts 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the immediate adoption of this resolution is 

necessary for preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the Town of 
Florence, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this resolution shall be in 
full force and effect from the offer of its passage and adoption by the Mayor and Council 
of the Town of Florence, Arizona, with an effective date of April 1. 2019. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this 1st day of April 2019. 
 
       __________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  __________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas,  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
Subject:   Modify Apache Underground Contract for CIP WU-38 8 Water Extension                 Meeting Date:  April 1, 2019 
Page 1 of 3 

                                      Public Works Director 
                                      Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Modify existing contract with Apache Underground 
utilizing Pine-Strawberry Waterline Replacement and Water Facilities 
Improvement Construction Work – Job Order Contract dated 
October 18, 2018 for CIP WU-38 Water line replacement.

 Ordinance   
 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality        Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval to modify the existing contract with Apache Underground, utilizing Pine-Strawberry 
Waterline Replacement and Water Facilities Improvement Construction Work – Job Order 
Contract, dated October 18, 2018, for CIP WU-38 Water line replacement, in an amount not 
to exceed $1,314,779.20 (Bid $939,128.00 plus a 40% Town contingency of $375,651.20.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The original pricing structure was created based solely on assumed quantities using a 
Google Earth photograph.  No detailed engineering drawings were available at the time.  The 
timing was an overwhelming driver at the time due to the ability to order materials to start the 
job on time.  The original approval has allowed the contractor to order materials and start the 
Phase 3a portion of the project while the plan for the 8-inch portion of the project was 
designed.  The design has been completed and approved by both the Town and ADEQ. 
Once the design was completed the plan was sent to the contractor for an updated bid.  The 
Engineering Division has done a complete review of the price discrepancies and finds no 
fault on the consultant or the contractor.  The price difference is merely that the quantities 
have changed due to the completed design.   
 
The Town is planning to replace existing water lines that are undersized or of an antiquated 
construction method that is prone to failure. There is a significant amount of the Town’s water 
line infrastructure that is 4-inch or smaller. This sizing configuration is unusual in modern 
construction and doesn’t allow the Town to supply adequate fire flows. The lack of fire flows 



Subject:   Modify Apache Underground Contract for CIP WU-38 8 Water Extension                 Meeting Date:  April 1, 
2019 
Page 2 of 3 

is especially true for commercial development or improvements to existing Florence Unified 
School District (FUSD) buildings. The Town’s Water Division spends a significant amount of 
staff time repairing breaks/leaks in the water lines. There are several factors contributing to 
the water line breaks; 

 Age of infrastructure 
 Construction materials 
 Construction methods including the lack of joint restraints 
 Soil conditions 

 
The Town has budgeted in the CIP to replace water lines where needed over the next two 
decades. 

 
This particular project will provide the FUSD’s kindergarten through 8th grade school (FUSD 
K8) much improved fire flows as well as the adjacent areas. The line will follow the proposed 
layout, Exhibit X. 
 
8-inch water line 
Elizabeth St., from Collingwood St. to Virginia Ave. 
Duron St., from Elizabeth St. to Orlando St. 
Virginia Ave., from Elizabeth St. to Orlando St. 
Orlando St., from Virginia Ave. to Stewart St.  
Stewart St., from Orlando St. to SR79 
Park St., from Virginia Ave. to Brady St. 
 
12-inch water line 
Collingwood St., from Elizabeth St. to Orlando St. 
Orlando St., from Collingwood St. to Virginia Ave. 
Virginia Ave., from Orlando St. to Park St.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Currently the FUSD K8 doesn’t have code compliant fire flows. If the contracts to improve the 
infrastructure are not approved the planned improvements would not be fit to occupy.  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Planned improvements would get completed in time before FUSD K8 additions are 
completed. All the adjacent areas to the FUSD K8 would receive additional fire flows and 
improve water pressure.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The project amount shall not exceed (Bid $939,128.00 and a 40% Town contingency of 
$375,651.20) the amount of $1,314,779.20. CIP WU-38 Water line replacement. 

 



Subject:   Modify Apache Underground Contract for CIP WU-38 8 Water Extension                 Meeting Date:  April 1, 
2019 
Page 3 of 3 

Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 5.63 Purchases of 
$25,000 or More (specifically, 5.6321 of Vendor Selection). 

 
5.632 Vendor Selection 
 
 5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by  
 necessity or by the Town Manager as indicated by Emergency / Sole 
 Source Purchase, cooperative purchase, state contract or any other  
 method authorized.  The Finance Director reviews for budget availability 
 and bidding procedures.  The Town Manager reviews for need. 
 
4.12 Purchasing Policy  
  
 Department Heads must approve all purchases regardless of dollar value.   

This does not preclude the Department Head from obtaining the necessary  
approval from the Town Manager and/or Town Council, nor does this allow  
them to have signature authority on contracts.  The Town Manager has  
signature authority on purchases up to $24,999.  Town Council is required on  
any purchases of $25,000 or more. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 
Exhibit B – TOF Pipe Layout 
Exhibit C – TOF – Apache Underground Bid Response 
Exhibit D – Request for Statement of Qualifications JOC PSWID 
Exhibit E – Signed Page 40 of JOC with PSWID 
Exhibit F – TOF Cooperative Contract with Apache Underground and Excavating LLC 
Exhibit G – Approved Bid Tab 
Exhibit H – Revised Bid 
Exhibit I -   11.5.2018 Town Council Agenda Minutes 
Apache JOC  
Apache JOC Supplement 

 



Description Bid Qty UM Unit Bid Price Total Bid Price

1 Elizabeth/Orlando - Mobilization 1 LS

2 Elizabeth/Orlando - Traffic Control 1 LS

3 Elizabeth/Orlando - Install New 8"  PVC Pipe Waterline Per COTW Specifications 2,095 LF

4 Elizabeth/Orlando - Install New 12” PVC Pipe Waterline Per COTW Specifications 20 LF

5 8” valves 8 EA

6 Air/Vacuum Release Valve 1 EA

7 6” Fire Hydrant 1 EA

8 12”X8” crosses for tie in and stub out for 12” system 2 EA

9 Elizabeth/Orlando – Tie-in Existing House Services Per COTW Specifications 28 EA

10 Elizabeth/Orlando - Cap and Grout Ends Abandon Old Waterline in Place (Using PVC Cap and Grout) 2 EA

11 Elizabeth/Orlando - Sawcut And Remove Asphalt (Over New Pipe Only) 1,118 SY

12 Elizabeth/Orlando - Place And Compact 2" Thick MAG Spec Asphalt Above New And Old Pipe On Native Backfill 1,118 SY

13 Elizabeth/Orlando - Survey Cost 1 LS

8" Water Line Extension - ELIZABETH - VIRGINIA - ORLANDO - Proposal

(Part of the CIP WU-83 DOWNTOWN 12" LOOP)

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA

GRAND TOTAL

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B



Description Bid Qty UM Unit Bid Price Total Bid Price

1 Elizabeth/Orlando - Mobilization 1 LS 9000 9,000.00

2 Elizabeth/Orlando - Traffic Control 1 LS 12000 12,000.00

3 Elizabeth/Orlando - Install New 8"  PVC Pipe Waterline Per COTW Specifications 4,000 LF 38 152,000.00

4 Elizabeth/Orlando - Install New 12” PVC Pipe Waterline Per COTW Specifications 1675 LF 75 125,625.00

5 8” valves 8 EA 3000 24,000.00

6 Air/Vacuum Release Valve 1 EA 1520 1,520.00

7 6” Fire Hydrant 17 EA 6500 110,500.00

8 12”X8” crosses for tie in and stub out for 12” system 2 EA 5400 10,800.00

9 Elizabeth/Orlando – Tie-in Existing House Services Per COTW Specifications N/A N/A N/A 0.00

10 Elizabeth/Orlando - Cap and Grout Ends Abandon Old Waterline in Place (Using PVC Cap and Grout) 2 EA 800 1,600.00

11 Elizabeth/Orlando - Sawcut And Remove Asphalt (Over New Pipe Only) 2,523 SY 3 7,569.00

12 Elizabeth/Orlando - Place And Compact 2" Thick MAG Spec Asphalt Above New And Old Pipe On Native Backfill 2,523 SY 42 105,966.00

13 Elizabeth/Orlando - Design and Survey Costs (Allowance) 1 LS 8000 8,000.00

14 2" Water Services 7 EA 3000 21,000.00

15 1" Water Service 59 EA 1500 88,500.00

 $       678,080.00 

8" Water Line Extension - ELIZABETH - VIRGINIA - ORLANDO - Proposal 9.6.2018

(Part of the CIP WU-83 DOWNTOWN 12" LOOP)

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA / APACHE UNDERGROUND AND EXCAVATING

GRAND TOTAL

EXHIBIT C

X 20% Contingency $135,616.00

TOTAL $813,696.00







































































































EXHIBIT E



 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF PINE-STRAWBERRY WATER 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (PSWID) SOLICITATION AND CONTRACT FOR 
WATERLINE REPLACEMENT AND WATER FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

CONSTRUCTION WORK / JOB ORDER CONTRACTING 
 
 

 
   

 

 

 

 
 

  
  

   

 
  

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 1 st day 
of April, 2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona
(the “Town”), and Apache Underground and Excavating LLC. (the “Contractor”) and 
together with the Contract Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the
“resultant contract” contemplated with the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District
(PSWID)for Waterline Replacement and Water Facilities Improvement Project 
Construction Work Job Order Contracting. The Town and the Contractor are sometimes 
referred to in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a
“Party”.

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town the materials and
services described in the attached scope of materials and services set forth in
Exhibit “A” (“Services”). The Contractor shall provide the Services in 
accordance with the schedule attached in Exhibit “A”, and the Contract 
Documents, including all exhibits to the Master Contract including but not limited 
to any Standard Terms and Conditions and Detailed Specifications.  Contractor 
agrees, at its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish all of the 
equipment, personnel and materials necessary to provide, in a good and 
substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Services.

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the
parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract and 
the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the provisions of the Contract 
Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be considered as an 
acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting herewith or the Master 
Contract, unless expressly stated herein.

3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and
valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master Job Order Contract 
by the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District (PSWID) for Waterline 
Replacement and Water Facilities Improvement Project Construction Work Job 
Order Contracting, dated October 18, 2018 and Job Order Contract Between 
PSWID and Apache Underground and Excavating LLC is in full force and effect, 
and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract are incorporated by
reference into this Contract, creating an agreement identical in terms between
the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: “PSWID”, “Pine- 
Strawberry Water Improvement District”, shall be deemed to be and refer to the 
Town of Florence; the terms: “Maricopa County”, shall be deemed to be and refer
to Pinal County; the terms: “Manager of Construction and Contracting”, shall be

1

EXHIBIT F



2 
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

   
   

  
 

 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

deemed to be and refer to the Florence Public Works Director, Town of Florence, 
425 E. Ruggles Street, Florence, AZ 85132; and the terms: “Respondent”, or
“Contractor,” or “Job Order Contractor”, or “Apache Underground and Excavating
LLC” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following  contract
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein:
A. This signed Contract page 40.
B. The solicitation Documents for the PSWID Solicitation and Contract for

Waterline Replacement and Water Facilities Improvement Project 
Construction Work Job Order Contract, dated October 18, 2018 between the 
Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District and Apache Underground and 
Excavating LLC., including, but not limited to: Instructions, Fee Schedules;
Notices; Checklists; Requirements for Proposers; General Conditions; Special 
Conditions; Scope of Work; Work Schedule; Certificates of Compliance;
Warranties for Work; Work Forms; Attachments; Price Sheets;
Questionnaires; Response Forms; Specifications and Pricing Sheets; Special 
Provisions and Specifications; Technical Provisions and Specifications;
Schedules; Cooperative Authorizations; Exhibits; (the “Contract Documents” 
or “Master Contract”).

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract
Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “A” (Price Sheet), 
and shall not exceed $939,128.00.

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective
Date through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to
the terms of this Contract.

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS.
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 
1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.

B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the
Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A)
(hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”).

C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material
breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 



3 
 

D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any contractor or 
subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
contractor or subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any such 
inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 

employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town in regard to any random verifications performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 

materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment 
verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal 
Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by 
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, 
time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  
Services include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or 
transportation facility or improvement to real property. 

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “A”.  

If payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town may terminate this Contract, or any part thereof for its 
sole convenience, at any time without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall 
receive payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by 
Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods 
and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

 
10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 

independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under 
this Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, 
agent, or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 

 
11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 

deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Apache 



4 
 

Underground and Excavating LLC. Attn: Mark Gardner, P.O. Box 113, Lakeside, 
AZ 85929. 

 
12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 

successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, expert witnesses expenses and the costs 
of appellate proceedings), and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, 
relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of the Contractor, its agents, employees 
or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the Goods or Services in the 
performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and 
indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees shall arise in connection with 
any claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss 
of use of resulting therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, Goods, Services in the performance of this Contract including any 
employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other 
person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the 
Contractor may be legally liable. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  
The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not 
relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or 
Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the 
Town, Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or 
redo such Services until they are in accordance with this Contract and to the 
Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants 
that Goods will be new, unused, of most current manufacture and not 
discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least two  
(2) years unless otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with 
manufacturer’s published specifications. 

 
14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 

Policy govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by 
this reference.  

 
15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 

construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 



5 
 

The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the Contractor, by 
execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 

       Date:_________________________ 
 

By: __________________________  
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
Approved as to Form 
 
______________________________ 
Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 Date:__________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         
 
           



EXHIBIT G





























































































































MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

Copy:  Department Heads 

Date:  April 1, 2019 

Re:  Town Manager’s Report  

 
I thought that it would be important to make the connection between the Council Strategic 
1 
 

Plan and current Town priorities, therefore this memo provides select updates by Strategic 
Plan Area.  It is not intended to be exhaustive list, just an update on one project per area.  I 
do not want to supplant or duplicate the individual department reports that Council receives 
on a monthly basis. 
 
Community Vitality:  Pooch Party is an annual event held in conjunction with the Pinal 
County Animal Care and Control.  This event, held on Saturday, February 23rd is a “one-
stop” convenience for Pinal County dog owners.  Employees from the Animal Care and 
Control offer shots (Rabies, Parvo and Bordetella for $9 to $21) as well as microchips ($20) 
and a variety of licensing fees.  Licensing fees ranged from $6 (a senior citizen owner) to 
$30 for an unaltered dog.   Five dogs available for adoption were brought by Animal Care 
and Control for a $65 fee each (included all shots and licensing).  Mayor Tara Walter and 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen stopped by the event as well.   County Animal Care and 
Control staff stated how pleased they were with the response.   
 
Teens from Phoenix, Apache Junction, Chandler and Florence attended the Third Annual 
Teen Symposium, presented by the Florence Teen Council.  The event was held in the 
Library and Community Center from 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on Saturday, February 23rd.   
Pre-registration yielded 70 participants, but weather conditions reduced that to 45 teens.  
The symposium is designed to provide teens the opportunity to network with others, attend 
helpful and informative sessions specific to today’s teens and hear influential guest 
speakers.  Kim “Koko” Hunter and David Lewis, FTC advisors along with FTC members, 
organized the conference.  Participants attended two breakout sessions with three guest 
speakers (Jazmine Hall, Anita Cota Soto and Tomas Stanton) and after lunch, listened to 
the keynote speaker, Alonzo Jones.  Mr. Jones is an associate athletic director at Arizona 
State and a national motivational speaker.  He also was a presenter at the recent Arizona 
League of Cities and Towns conference.  His message to the teens on Saturday 
emphasized:  Balance, Planning and Perseverance.  Mayor Tara Walter and 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen attended and issued welcomes to all the participants.   
Councilmember Karen Wall also attended.     
 
Economic Prosperity: The next session in the Central Arizona College “Workforce 
Education Business Series”, sponsored by the Town of Florence and the Greater Florence 
Chamber of Commerce will be held on April 2nd. The session is titled “Communication in 
the Workplace”.  The remaining schedule of topics is as follows: 

 Communication in the Workplace, April 2nd 
 Business Finance, May 7th 
 Customer Service, June 4th 



2 
 

 Optimum Performance, June 25th 
 
Sessions are held from 6:00 to 8:00pm and are priced at $10 per session or $30 for the 
whole series.  Interested parties should contact Monica Shumway at 520-494-6651. 
 
Leadership and Governance:  The Town of Florence regularly surveys its residents about 
their opinions on topics such as quality of life, service delivery, civic participation and 
unique issues of local interest. These periodic surveys offer staff, elected officials and 
others with an opportunity to identify challenges and plan for and evaluate improvements.  
Florence’s next Citizen Survey will be distributed in the next few weeks.  A random sample 
was generated to determine which residents will be sent a survey from the Florence 
Registered Voters Database.  Survey instructions will be provided in the packet that will be 
mailed (or e-mailed) to each voter in the sample. 
 
Partnerships and Relationships:   While Community Services Department is not 
responsible for the planning, organization and coordination of this event, we are assisting.  
The parade, which is on Saturday, March 30th starting at 10:00 a.m., will stage at Heritage 
Park and then proceed south on Main Street.  At the completion of the parade, organizers 
will hold a ceremony at Padilla Park at 11:00 a.m.  Parks and Recreation is providing a 
sound system and chairs for the ceremony.  We are also providing support by ensuring 
barricades are placed along Main Street during the parade.  PD and Public Works are also 
involved in this service.   
 
Little League’s opening day begins with a parade of teams, coaches and players.  The 
league has also arranged for bounce houses, raffles to raise money to support league 
functions, food and DJ music.   Boys and Girls Major League baseball and softball games 
will be played as well.  Community Services has met and worked with Little League officials 
since November to coordinate operations for this upcoming season. 
 
The Town’s Fifth Annual Road to Country Thunder music spectacular is Saturday, April 6th 
on downtown Main Street.  The four country artists are Cameron Byfield, Ryan and the 
Renegades, Austin Burke and Harry Luge, Jr.  Byfield opens the show at 5:00 p.m. and 
Luge is the final performer starting at 8:30 p.m.  While the actual performers begin at 5:00 
p.m., Main Street by the Silver King Market Place will be closed to accommodate the stage 
set-up.  Main Street south will close later in the day as 5:00 p.m. approaches.  The event 
also features a beer garden and food vendors.  Community Services has once again 
partnered with Country Thunder representatives to present this event.  Other sponsors 
include KMLE, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, American Legion and Pinal 
County Mounted Posse. For more information, please call Alison Feliz at (520) 868-7585. 
 
Transportation and Infrastructure:  Well #2B project update: Well #2B has been 
successfully equipped, inspected and final billed. The pipefitting and control project will be 
next. The project should begin construction in May.   
 
The 12” Water Loop Project (Phase 3A), is complete. Water line is installed, pressure 
tested and bacterial tested.  The Town’s 8” distribution project will kick off on April 25th. 
 
The Town has installed a fire sprinkler system in the Public Works Building.  Inspections 
are scheduled for April. 
  



3 
 

Upcoming Events/Meetings/Forums:   
 April 6th 4:30 p.m.   Main Street Mural Dedication 

Historic Downtown Florence 
 

 April 6th         5:00 p.m.-10:00 p.m. Road to Country Thunder                        
                   Historic Downtown Florence 

 
 April 13th     9:00 a.m.-11:00 a.m.          Eggstravaganza                                      

                      Heritage Park 
 

 April 19th    10:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.        Easter Party                                            
                      Senior Center 

 
Success Stories:   

 State Shared Revenues 
o Statewide, revenues in February were up by 2.2% over last year. So far this 

year, the State is $(132) million below its forecast.  This is likely due to 
income tax payments, and hopefully will reverse back to positive territory for 
next month’s reports.  All other economic indicators are strong, so the State 
believes this drop in forecast is an anomaly.  Nonetheless, the timing is bad, 
because it could convince many of the legislators to reign in spending as part 
of the upcoming budget. 

 
o Of particular importance to Florence, the State has seen a modest increase 

in HURF collections. These have increased by 4.8% over last year-to-date, 
despite higher gas prices and increased fuel efficiency.  To date, the State 
has collected $27.1 million more than anticipated in HURF. 

 
o Building permits are presenting a mixed bag, both in Florence as well as 

across the State.  Year-over-year, we have seen a slight decline (from 30 
permits in 2018 to 27 in 2019). Maricopa County has seen a 14.6% increase 
in permits, but the number of Maricopa County home sales are down by 
nearly 12% since last year at this time.  We expect to see Florence’s 
numbers jump in the near future, with the addition of DR Horton (Anthem), 
Wade Journey Homes (Downtown), and J Carl Homes (Downtown) beginning 
to build. 

 
 

Current Advertisements: 
 
The following Requests for Proposals are currently Open: 

1. Aquatic Center Concession Services: closes on 4.5.19 
 

The following Requests for Proposals are Under Review: 
1. None 

 



TOWN OF FLORENCE  
Community Development 

224 W. 20th Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 

Office:  520-868-7542 
Fax:  520-868-7546 

 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE:   April 1, 2019 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Larry Harmer 
 
SUBJECT:       Community Development Monthly Report 
 
Projects: 
 

1 | P a g e  
Community Development Report – Prepared March 15, 2018 

Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
 Unit 5   

o Landscape Plan submitted 2/13/19  
o Pave 1st QTR 2019 

 
 Unit 7  

o Landscape Plan submitted 2/13/19 
o Pave 1st QTR 2019 

 
 Unit 24  

o Improvement Plan approved 
o Final plat approved and recorded 
o Landscape Plan submittal 2020 

 
 Unit 32  

o Improvement Plan approved 
o Final plat approved and recorded 
o Landscape Plan submittal 2019 

 
 Unit 34  

o Improvement Plan approved 
o Landscape Plan submittal 2020 

 
 Unit 52  

o Paved – working on adjustments 
o Landscape completed 
o Letter of Acceptance being completed 

 



2 | P a g e  
Community Development Report – Prepared March 15, 2018 

 
 Unit 55A 

o Grading permit approved 
 

 Units 56B and 58 
o Preplat late 2019 

 
 Unit 57 

o Preplat in 2019 
o Grading with Unit 55 

 
 Unit 60  

o Improvement Plan approved 
o Final Plat recorded 
o Landscape Plan submittal – 2nd Quarter 2019 
o Grading permits approved 

 
Attaway Crossing Annexation 

 A preliminary land plan was shared showing primarily single family residential with a 20-
acre commercial site 

 Updates have been received from Applicant 
o A new annexation petition needs to be submitted 
o A revision to the cost-benefit has been prepared that addresses years 11-20 
o A new PUD will be submitted to address this development as free-standing 

(separate from Merrill Ranch) 
 Contact from property owner – proceeding with application 
 No update from previous report. 

 
Building Code 

 FINAL 2012 ICC Code Adoption is being prepared for Town Council adoption 
 

Rail 3 – 390 N. Main Street 
 Certificate of Occupancy has been issued. 

 
Kokopelli Moon Saloon – 255 N. Main Street 

 Council awarded demolishing contract. 
 

Florence Artisan Acres (Windmill Winery)  
 A new Development Agreement was approved by Town Council on September 4, 2018 
 Design Review for the new Winery Inn was approved by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission of August 16, 2018. 
 No new updates from previous report. 

 



3 | P a g e  
Community Development Report – Prepared March 15, 2018 

Monarch/Aspen Farms   
 Submittal for new Planned Unit Development (PUD) under review 
 1st review comments have return to the applicants for response/revisions 
 Town staff has been meeting with applicant to discuss revisions 

 
Smith Building 

 Remodeling continuing under current permit 
 
Parking and Sign Code Amendments 

 Planning and Zoning Commission held their first Public Hearing on December 20 
with a second Public Hearing on January 17, 2019.  Recommendation for adoption. 

 Town Council Public Hearings are scheduled for March 4 and March 18, 2019. 
 A Council work session has been scheduled for March 25 to review. 

 
470 South Main Street 

 A rezoning request has been received from the property owner to rezone from NO-
Neighborhood Office to B-2 Downtown and Highway Business. 

 Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing is scheduled for March 7, 2019 
 Town Council Public Hearings are scheduled for March 18 and April 1, 2019. 

 
Permits Issued February 2019 (March 2019 totals should available the 2nd week in April) 
 

 BLD-RES-SFR-NEW – 12 (Total of 27 for the calendar year) 
 OTHER – 39 

TOTAL – 51 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Memorandum 

To:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

From:  Bryan C. Hughes, Community Services Director 

Date:  March 15, 2019 

Re:  March 2019 Department Report 
Page 1 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

Project Updates: 
 The Town submitted a draft of the 30% design documents, along with an updated 

Plan of Development (POD) to Bureau of Land Management (BLM) on March 15th.  
Staff and our consultants are scheduled to meet at the BLM Lower Sonoran District 
Office on Tuesday, March 19th to review the design and move forward with the 
process. 

 WestLand Resources submitted their Cultural Inventory of 403 acres for the 
Poston Butte Expansion Project to the BLM for review.  BLM is still reviewing the 
document and are backlogged due to the recent federal government shutdown. 

 J2 Engineering and Environmental Design has completed the initial 30% draft 
design on the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project.  The Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) will be reviewing and providing comments.  

 Michael Baker International, the consultant working on the Active Transportation 
Plan, submited a working paper in January, outlining current conditions and our 
next steps.  A joint work session with the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board to review draft plan will be scheduled 
in April followed by a presentation to the Town Council in early May.  The project 
continues to move forward and is scheduled to be completed in June.   

 GreenPlay, the consultant working on the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive 
Plan, continues to collect information for the plan.  The parks and recreation 
survey will be mailed to homes in late March and will be available to the general 
public in mid-April.  

 The Veterans Memorial Committee will meet on Wednesday, March 20th as 
fundraising efforts continue.  The American Legion is taking the lead on 
fundraising and all donations made through them may be eligible for a tax 
deduction. 

 
Special Events 

 The Concerts in the Park, held each Friday evening in February at Padilla Park, 
were successful.  The last one of the series on Friday, February 22nd was 
cancelled due to inclement weather.  The concert, featuring local band “10th & 
Main,” was rescheduled to Friday, March 15th. 

 Saturday, March 30th will be a busy day in Florence.  The 75th Anniversary of the 
G.I. Bill event will take place in Historic Downtown Florence beginning with a 
parade on Main Street and concluding with activities at Padilla Park.  Later that 



Page 2 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

day, Florence Little League will be officially kicking off their season with Opening 
Day festivities at Heritage Park. 

 The Road to Country Thunder event is Saturday, April 6th, from 5-10 p.m. in 
Historic Downtown Florence.  Now in it’s 5th year, this free event is made 
possible thanks to partnership with Country Thunder Music Festivals, the Greater 
Florence Chamber of Commerce, Pinal County Mounted Posse, American 
Legion Post #9 and many others.  There will be four performers this year, with 
Harry Luge headlining the event.  There will be a beer garden and numerous 
choices from our food vendors. 

 Staff is also busy working on plans for the annual Eggstravaganza scheduled for 
Saturday, April 13th at Heritage Park.  New this year will be the Pinal County 
Resources Fair for residents and visitors to view all the family resources 
available in Florence and Pinal County. 

 
Program Updates 
 Fourteen (14) teens and young adults went through Red Cross Lifeguard 

Certification over spring break.  Another four (4) went through re-certification.  
Another course will be held in early May for those that could not attend.  Certified 
lifeguards are eligible for summer employment at the Aquatic Center. 

 The partnership with Arizona Fight Club for boxing/fitness classes at the Library and 
Community Center started off strong with 47 participants registered in March for the 
Boxing Bootcamp program. 

 The yoga partnership is also going well, with 15 participants in different classes over 
the last two months.  We anticipate continued growth in wellness classes in the 
future. 

 Staff is exploring options for programming next school year after the announcement 
by the Florence Unified School District that there will be a new provider of after 
school programs.  Ideas are focused on off-campus programming options for those 
parents that may not be able to afford the new provider fees on-campus. 

 
Boards and Commissions 

 Arts and Culture Commission 
o The Commission met on Thursday, March 14th. 
o The Commission hosted a few events over the past month. 

 The Florence Guitar Band held a free concert at the Suter House 
on Friday, March 8th.  There were 74 guests and it was a full house! 

 The Commissioners are also hosting Fine Art for Teens, a free 
program, on Friday, March 15th and Friday, March 22nd, at the Suter 
House during spring break. 

 Commissioners and volunteers began painting on the Main Street 
Mural Project.  The project is scheduled to be completed by the end 
of the month.  The dedication will be held before the Road to 
Country Thunder event on Saturday, April 6th at 4:30 p.m. 

 Youth Commission 
o The new Commission held their first meeting on Wednesday, February 

27th.  The Commission will hold regular meetings on the third Thursday of 
each month at 6:00 p.m. at the Library and Community Center. 

 
  



Page 3 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

The Florence Teen Council (FTC) 
 Coordinated a successful Cupids Ball on Friday, March 15th at the Library and 

Community Center.  103 middle school students attended the first-time event. 
 Coordinated the 3rd Annual 2019 Teen Leadership Symposium (below, left).  There 

were 45 attendees, including students from other teen groups.  There were three 
speakers and one keynote speaker. 

 Participated in the first Community Kickball Event (below, right) on Friday, March 
8th at Heritage Park.  The FTC provided music/entertainment and served food after 
the games were over. 

 Had a BBQ at South Pointe High School in Phoenix with another teen leadership 
group and then went to the Phoenix Suns game on Wednesday, March 13th during 
FUSD spring break. 

  
 
  



Page 4 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

Parks and Recreation Department 
Divisions Report 

February 2019 
 

Recreation/Aquatics/Special Events Programs 
Recreation Programs  Participants Revenue Notes 
B&A Bell – Anthem 20 $1,030
B&A Bell – Florence 32 $1,760
Drop-In B&A Bell 3 $30
Pickleball Lessons Free Program
Open Studio 4 Free Program – Arts & Culture
Drum Circle Free Program – Arts & Culture
Guitar & Cello Lessons 29 Free Program – Hermalene
Strings of the Sonoran 74 Free Concert
Coach Pitch 24 $805
Soccer 21 $890
Futsal 2 $0
T-ball 58 $2,050
Flow Yoga Evening  3 $120
Introduction to Yoga 3 $40
Restorative Yoga 2 $50
Father/Daughter Gala  39 $546
Home Tour  1,000 $ Special Event
Quick Draw 8 $250

 
Facility Use Permits 

Number of Facility 
Use Permits 

Number of Bookings 
Estimated Number 

of Participants 
Revenue 

Generated 

73 206 4,928 $872.50 
 
  



Page 5 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

Fitness Center – Membership Package 
Fitness Package      Sales Renewals Total Revenue
Adult Annual   
Adult Monthly 21 42 63 $1,260
Adult Six Months   
Employee Membership 8 3 11 Free
Green Tree Inn 25 1 26 Billed thru A/R
Senior Annual  1 1 $132
Senior Monthly 5 29 34 $481
Senior Six Months  1 1 $66
Youth Monthly 4 2 6 $78
Youth Six Month   $
Drop-In Fitness  12 12 $72
Total Memberships 75 79 154 $2,089

 
 

Fitness Center Classes 
 
 

 Estimated member sign-ins throughout the month: 1,241 
 Total membership packages sold: 154 
 Fitness Center revenue for membership package sales: $2,089 
 Fitness Classes revenue: $ 
 Total Revenue: $2,089 

 
 

Miscellaneous Revenue 

Program Resident Non-Resident Revenue Notes
Silver Sneakers Classic $0 
Silver Sneakers Classes $0 
Optum Fitness $0 

Product Total Revenue Notes
Paper & Markers $
150th Mug $
Drop in Yoga 4 $40
Replacement Key FC 5 $5
Replacement Key AC $
Swim Diapers $



Page 6 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

Dorothy Nolan Senior Center 
Activity Monthly Total 
Anthem Pharmacy 07
Angel Care Discussion 07
Back Space 3, Yahtzee, Skip Bo, Dominoes, Cards, Cribbage, Phase 10, Wii 
Bowling, Bunco-12, Pool 

172 

 Bingo-110 – Steward Health19 129
Birthday Cards 06
Bible Study     10
Breakfast 205
Angel Care -In Service 07
Blood Pressures – Florence Fire 0 
Building Use 944
CAHRA 16
Crafts- with Doris -   Jewelry-8    Creations & Libations-2   Art-3 13
Coolidge Shopping 11
Computer Use 14
Diabetic Presentation by:    
Dinner Date –Palomino’s 08
Dollar Store 05
Dental Clinic 42
Exercise with Rhoda - Pizzazz, - Hand weights and walk a mile, Dining Room  39
Extension Food Program  09
Fitness Center 14
Grief Support 15
Guardian Angel Installation 3 
Hair Cuts by Mary Helen  0 
Healthy Eating by Lou 07
Home Delivered meals –     248
Knit/Crochet Club 0 
Lost Meals 20
Medicare Advocate Benefits (Open Enrollment) 0 
Movie & Popcorn 09
Music by Rudy/ 25   Music with Hermalene- 209 Coffee Tyme Players58 Thy -
20 

370 

Senior Donation Account Meal Participant -Safeway Anthem- Fudge Shop 21
Senior Hot Topics 25
Staff Cooked meals & senior meal 94/21 115
Volunteer Hours 245
Wii bowling /Volleyball  20

Accomplishments:    
The Center served 360 meals to participants.  We had 6 new senior participant this 
month. Rides were provided for 272 riders, 90 trips to the Center, 16 errands.  
We traveled a total of 1226 miles. The Give A Lift Program had 7 volunteers who 
delivered 30 medical transportation trips to 7 participants resulting an additional 850 
miles and 46 additional volunteer hours. 



Page 7 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

Yard Sales-05, CAC Trips- 4 Brother’s-17, Highway Clean-up – 11, Talent 
Show/Valentine Party- 44 (9Acts) Alzheimer’s Support -05    FHS Retail Store- 14    
Country Store -5   Smart Driving Class- 13   Pony Express- 13      

Florence Community Library 
February 2019 

 
 
February Statistics  
 14,238 total items were circulated in February. 
 95 library cards were issued 
 952 patrons signed up for use of the computer lab computers 
 2,312 wireless sessions were held  
 92 person(s) attended 14 program(s) presented by the library   
 
February Activities  
2/01/19 AZ Humanities Presentation: Celebrities, Artists, & Good Places to Drink 
2/02/19 February Library Movie 
2/04/19 Librarian Gloria Moreno attended NASA STEM Workshop  
2/05/19 Librarian Gloria Moreno attended NASA STEM Workshop  
2/05/19 Family Storytime 
2/06/19 Book Club 
2/07/19 ‘Tween Code Club 
2/08/19 Family Craft 
2/11/19 Library Manager Jasper Halt attended a meeting of the Business and  

Education Committee. 
2/12/19 Family Storytime 
2/14/19 ‘Tween Code Club 
2/19/19 Family Storytime 
2/20/19 Family Flick 
2/21/19 ‘Tween Code Club 
2/26/19 Family Storytime 
2/27/19 “Color Me Puzzled” Adult Coloring 
2/27/19 Librarians Gloria Moreno and Kaytlin Nolan participated in FK-8’s Bingo 
for Books  
2/28/19 ‘Tween Code Club 
 
Summer Reading 2019 
As summer is fast approaching, planning is under way for the upcoming and always 
popular Summer Reading Program. This year’s national theme is a “Universe of 
Stories,” with this thrilling theme comes a vast amount of possibilities for crafts, 
Storytimes and programming which will incorporate STEM throughout the six week 
program. Kicking off May 28, this summer is sure to hold something for all ages at the 
library.  
 
Spotlight: WiFi Site Leader 
17,672 separate WiFi sessions were logged from July – February at the Florence 
Community Library. The Florence Library and Community Center represents the #1 
most-used Pinal County Library District (PCLD) WiFi site. We have held this position in 



Page 8 
Community Services 

March 2019 Monthly Report 

Pinal County for all of 2018 and are continuing this trend in 2019. In comparison, Eloy is 
the second most used site, with 12,093 WiFi sessions for the same time period – 
showing that the Library and Community Center WiFi is a resource much-used by the 
public! 
 



 

   
 
 

.  

COURT 

FINANCIAL 

REPORT 
February 2019 

IRENE ENRIQUEZ – Court Administrator 



 

COUNTY REVENUE                              49.94          49.69 

STATE REVENUE                              14,198.55               11,386.08 

TOWN REVENUE                       17,852.36                              19,224.25 

RESTITUTION AND BONDS                       1,104.84                               1,779.03 

TOTAL MONTHLY REVENUE:                           $33,205.69           $32,439.05 

 
DISTRIBUTION TYPE 

FEBRUARY 2019 
 (CURRENT) 

FEBRUARY 2018 
(LAST YEAR) 

 
FINE, FEES, & TRAFFIC  14,262.40 14,866.50

 
STATE SURCHARGES  8946.72 8,106.08

 
STATE JCEF  519.92 511.55

 
LOCAL JCEF  279.92 275.45

 
STATE FINES  2723.56 578.20

 
FLORENCE POLICE FUND  1067.73 790.67

 
RESTITUTION  710.84 153.03

 
BONDS  394.00 1,626.00

 
PUBLIC DEFENDER FEE  257.25 401.56

 
JAIL HOUSING FEES  1,985.06 2,577.96

 
JUSTICE COURT FEES  49.94 49.69

 
GENERAL FUND  0.00 294.03

 
FARE SPECIAL COLLECTION FEE  1318.50 1,548.15

 
FARE DELINQUENCY FEE  562.55 544.74

 
VICTIMS RIGHTS ENFORC.  127.30 97.36

PCSO FUND  0.00 0.00

 
OVERPAYMENT REFUND  0.00 18.08



 

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

$35,000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

2018
201933734

 

 

 

 

2.3% Increase from 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

COMPLAINTS AND CITATION FILED  
 

 

       JAN   FEB   MAR   APR   MAY    JUN   JUL   AUG    SEPT   OCT    NOV   DEC 

2018 –        130      59 

2019 –       102      70 

 

 

 

 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2018 2019



 

CITATION BREAKDOWN 

 

Below are the types of cases filed for the month of FEBRUARY 2019 

 

CIVIL TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS  ‐  55 

MUNICIPAL CODE                     ‐              0         

CRIMINAL TRAFFIC             ‐      5 

CRIMINAL       ‐    7 

DUI        ‐    3    

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE    ‐    0 

 

 

 

 

 

 









Fire Department 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M   

  
 

DATE:      March 5, 2019 
 
TO:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
  
FROM: David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJ: Summary of February 2019 and Plans for March 2019 

 

The fire responses for 2019-2017 are as follows: 

March 2019  Location of Calls  

Type of Calls 
                            

Florence 
Proper 

Florence 

Gardens 

Anthem Prisons Mutual 
Aid 

Totals 

Brush Fires 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Structure Fires 1 0 1 0 0 2 

Vehicle Fires 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Trash Fires 1 0 0 0 0 1 

EMS 59 23 42 61 2 187 

HazMat 2 0 3 0 0 5 

Electrical Arching 0 0 1 0 0 1 

Police Asst./Public Asst. 2 5 9 0 0 16 

Unauthorized Burning 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Good Intent 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Controlled Burning 0 0 0 0 0 0 

False Alarm/System Malfunction 5 0 4 0 0 9 

Emergency Stand by (move up) 4 0 44 0 3 51 

Other Calls 4 2 6 5 0 17 

TOTALS 78 30 110 66 5 289 

       

Three Year View 2019  2018           2017 

 Feb YTD Feb YTD Feb YTD 

EMS 187 366 118 273 173 345 

Fire Calls 3 8 2 6 1 6 

All other Calls 99 166 59 142 130 233 

TOTALS 289 540 179 421 304 584 



Summary of February 
 

Fire Chief Report 

 
• Attended February Town Council Meetings 

• Recognized Captain Bill Bruin for his completion of the National Fire Academy’s 

Managing Officer Program at the February 4th  Town Council meeting 

• Attended February Management Team Meetings 

• Conducted weekly Fire Staff meetings 

• Completed the Battalion Chief testing process 

• Attended a meeting on abandoned buildings February 1st 

• Attended a meeting on the Downtown Historic District February 1st 

• Participated in a roundtable discussion on the opiate problem with the Town Manager, 

Police Chief and County Attorney on February 8th. 

• A Local Emergency Planning Committee meeting was conducted on February 7th.  

• Attended a meeting on the Pinal County Tax Auction process on February 11th. 

• Attending a meeting regarding the First Net public safety system on February 11th 

• Attended a one-day seminar in Mesa on February 12th regarding legal issues in the fire 

service and social media challenges in public safety agencies 

• Conducted a meeting with Life Net regarding an incident that occurred during the Prison 

Run event 

• Attended a pre-demolition walk-through of the Kokopelli building February 14th 

• Participated in a discussion regarding annexations with Town Staff on February 14th 

• Participated in multiple personnel-related meetings during the month of February 

• Attended a meeting with Spherium on February 21st  

• Attended a meeting with Fire Trucks Unlimited, a fire apparatus restoration company on 

February 22 

• Conducted a meeting with American Medical Response on February 22nd  

• Successfully completed an audit by the Department of Health Services 

 

 



 

Division Report – Administration 

 
Incidents 

• Anthem Grill                                       CO2 alarm activation. (Improper beverage transfer) 

• Circle K                                               CO2 Activation (Improper handling of CO2                      

sensor & power source.) 

• 1850 Diversion Dam                             Structure Fire (Under Investigation) 

 

Threat Vulnerability Assessment Program 

• TVA Town Hall 

• TVA PC Superior Courts  

 

Plan Reviews 

• FUSD K-8 Fire Alarm System               Community Development 

• Town Fire Line Project                           Public Works 

 

Special Event Permit Review and Inspections  

• Multiple Event Reviews 

 

Life Safety Inspections 

• Anthem Grill                                                           Co2 inspection 

• Terra Del Sol                                                            Life safety 

• Pinal County Historical Museum                             Life safety  

 

Meetings 

• Code Assessment 110 Willow                                             Community Development  

• Addressing Project                                                                GIS Department 

• Code Adoption                                                                     Community Development 

• Florence Gardens Code Compliance Meeting                      Club House 

• Terra Del Sol Code Compliance Meeting                             Club House  

• Pinal County Attorneys New Development Fire Lane          Community Development 

• New Tenant Proposal     130 s Main                                      Community Development 

• Anthem Hospital Fire Access                                                 Site Tour 

• Anthem Hospital DOC egress and 

security                                                                                          

• Community Emergency Response Team CERT Meeting      Station 1  

• Threat Assessments                                                                Florence PD 

 



Training 

• On-Line Fire Protection Systems 

 

Special Assignments and Projects 

• Wireless Fire Alarm Project-On going 

• TLO Updates 

• Code Amendment Project updates 

• Town FEE Updates  

• PC Active Shooter Planning Project 

• Web site update project 

• Engine Company-Response Guide and Safety Survey project (training) 

• Existing Building  Safety Surveys  

• Burn Permit Procedures  

• FD-Training and development 

 

Division Report – Operations 
 

Apparatus 

• Pierce Recall on Aerial Command Zone, Superstition Mechanics working to coordinate 

fix, all Crews updated on safety procedures. 

• TRV-541 Scheduled for maintenance for Country Thunder Readiness 

• Both Battalion Trucks Replaced Batteries by TOF Maintenance 

• B542 new tire due to Flat by TOF Maintenance 

Uniforms/Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 

• No PPE Sent for cleaning,  

• Working with FF Calise on Turnout Tracking 

 

Communications Equipment 

• AVL Moved From R-541 to E-541 to Complete AVL Identifiers for Station 1 equipment.  

Working on Station 2 Equipment with IT to Figure out Problems 

 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 

• DHS Audit Complete 

• Tracking System for Narcotics and Drug Box Checkoffs approved by EMS Committee 

and in use 



• 2 Newer Generation LifePak 15 Monitors Placed in Service Due to Recall on 

Defibrillation Failures.  Working with LifePak on Software Updates. 

• Medications Restocked from Mt. Vista 

 

Fire Investigation Reports Reviewed 

 

  

Incident Number Incident Date Incident Address 

240972 1/23/2019 7549 W. Rushmore 

241451 1/29/2019 Felix / AZ Farms 

   

   

 

 

Training 

• 6 Captains Attended Response to Strip Mall Fires Training at Tempe Training Center 

• Crews Asked to Review Swift Water Operations with Heavy Prolonged Rain Periods 

 

Special Projects 

• Utility Truck Equipment List Being Formulated by FF Adamczyk 

• CERT Team meetings to plan for implementation Meetings Scheduled for 3/30 at 

Community Center, Florence Gardens, Sun City, and Parkside 

• Fliers Distributed For CERT  

• SCBA compressor cascade maintenance for breathing air 

 

Town Committees 

• Health and Safety 

• Grants 

• Timekeeping and paperless review 

• Initiatives, rewards, and recognition 

• Emergency Communications 

• Public Safety Planning Group 

 

 

 



 

Public Education and Community Risk Reduction 
 





 
Classics and Customs Car & Bike Show February 16, 2019 

 

Plans for March 
 

• Announce Battalion Chief Selection 

• Conduct a recruitment process for the formation of a Community Emergency 

Response Team (CERT) 

• Begin a recruit academy for the Part-time/Reserve Firefighter program 

• Prepare for Country Thunder 

• Attend an All-Hazards Incident Management Team course March 18-22 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FLORENCE POLICE 
Monthly Report – February 2019 

 Daniel R. Hughes, Chief of Police 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

“The men and women of the Florence Police Department stand firm in our pursuit for justice 
and public trust. We will stay true to our mission of providing service and safety to our 

community with honor, respect, and integrity. We are committed to providing fair and equal 
treatment to those we encounter.” 

425 N. Pinal St. ▫  P.O. Box 988 

Florence, AZ 85132 

Phone: 520-868-7681 ▫  Fax: 520-868-0158 



 

 

The information contained in this report outlines significant information and activity within the 
Florence Police Department (FPD) during the month of February 2019. The monthly report is 
prepared for the Town Council’s review and furthermore for the use by FPD to examine the 
current activity within the department and community to identify short-term and long-term 

needs, and develop plans for improvement to provide the highest level of service.  

 
 

 Personnel  
 

Employee Position Effective 

New Hire   
None   

Resignations/Terminations 
None   

Vacancies   
2 2- 1 Supervisor, 1 Officer  

1 Full-time Dispatcher Open continuous 

 
 
 

 Chief of Police  
 
Chief of Police, Daniel R. Hughes attended the following meetings during the month of February: 

 Town Council Meetings 
 Management Team Meetings 
 Weekly FPD Administrative Meetings 
 Purchasing Committee Meeting 
 Fire and Police Communication Meeting 
 Alliance to Combat Transnational Threat – Field Area 2 (ACTT FA-2) Planning Meeting 
 Pinal County Law Enforcement Association (PCLEA) Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Administrative/Support Services  
 

The Support Services area includes the following: Communications Division, Evidence and 
Property, Crime Scene Investigator, Records Division, and Departmental Budget/Finances. 
 
The Support Services Manager (Deanna Husk) had the following monthly activities: 

 Budget review 

 Purchase card review/coding 
 Employee evaluations 
 Preparation for Bi-Annual Evidence Audit 
 On-going review of policies/procedures 
 Review/Distribution of Monthly Report 
 Review/Preparation of Strategic Plan 
 Review of Laserfiche Project 

 
 
Communications 
The Dispatch Supervisor had the following monthly activities: 

 1 full-time position vacant 
 2 Dispatchers in training 
 Scheduling & testing new applicants 
 Revision of draft policies & procedures 
 Worked on Superior billing 

 
 
 

Calls for Service 
 

Below is a table that depicts the total calls for service handled by FPD dispatchers during the 
month of February. The numbers are shown by the incident locations and how the incident was 
reported. 
 

How Calls Are Received, Totals by How Received 
  Beat 1 Beat 2 Beat 3 TOTAL 
911 Line 40 9 33 82 
Crime Stop Line 0 0 0 0 
Officer Report 146 51 182 379 
In Person 43 3 1 47 
Radio Transmission 3 1 0 4 
State TT/NLETS 0 0 0 0 
Telephone 203 59 77 339 
TOTAL 435 123 293 851 

 

 



 

 

Average Response Time to Calls for Service 

 6 Month Reporting Period: September 2018 to February 2019 

  Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb
Priority 1 4:50 5:13 5:35 5:20 5:39 4:50
Priority 2 6:00 7:15 8:09 6:05 6:28 7:12
Priority 3 26:14 21:10 25:55 24:04 25:21 16:30
Priority 4 26:53 3:01 None 4:48 None None
Definitions:  

Priority 1 These priorities are those in which there is an imminent danger to life or 
major damage/loss to property or an in progress or just occurred major 
felony. 

Priority 2 These priorities are those in which a crime in progress might result in a 
threat of injury to a person, or major loss of property or immediate 
apprehension of a suspect.

Priority 3 These priorities are those in which there is no threat of personal injury or 
major loss of property. 

Priority 4 These priorities are those of a report nature only.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Classification of Offense Offenses 
Reported 

Unfounded 
Complaint 

Actual 
Offense 

Offenses 
Cleared 

Juvenile 
Clearance

CRIMINAL HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Murder/Nonneg Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Manslaughter by Negligence 0 0 0 0 0 

      

FORCIBLE RAPE 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Rape by Force 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Attempt Forcible Rape 0 0 0 0 0 

      

ROBBERY 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Firearm 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 0 0 0 0 0 

c. Other Dangerous Weapon 0 0 0 0 0 

d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 0 0 0 0 0 

      

ASSAULT 10 0 10 9 1 
a. Firearm 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 0 0 0 0 0 

c. Other Dangerous Weapon 0 0 0 0 0 

d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 3 0 3 5 0 

e. Other Assaults – Simple 7 0 7 4 1 

      

BURGLARY 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Unlawful Entry/No Force 0 0 0 0 0 

c. Attempt Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 

      

LARCENY – THEFT 4 0 4 0 0 
      

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 1 0 1 1 0 
a. Autos 1 0 1 1 0 

b. Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 

c. Other Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 

GRAND TOTAL 15 0 15 10 1 
      

Clearance(s) by Adult Arrest 3     

Clearance(s) by Juvenile Arrest 1     

**All data presented in this report is tentative until monthly audit is complete 
 
 
 

FEBRUARY 2019 – Offense Count Index 



 

 

 
Property & Evidence 

 
During the month of February 2019, there were 139 envelopes/packages involved in 78 incident 
cases submitted for processing by the Property and Evidence Section. Of the total,              
envelopes/packages: 

 77 were evidence items of which 4 were released, 61 were stored, and 12 out to lab 
and 1 was destroyed. 

 35 were safekeeping items of which 7 were stored and 28 were released. 
 7 were disposal items of which 7 were stored. 
 20 were found items of which 5 were stored and 15 were released. 

 
The items of evidence involved the following crimes: 

 15 - Drug Incidents 
 0 - DUI 

 

 

Other Considerations 
 The status of the Police Evidence Trust Fund bank account, involving $2,601.14. 

16 pending items:  
10 are for safekeeping/found property,  
5 are pending RICO forfeiture/Evidence, 
1 is to be returned to owner if located. 

 
Request to transfer funds from the trust fund to general fund were sent for the following 
cases: 
 

F060315002 11/20/2008 $86.00
F16120271 6/30/2017 $12.00
F17040251 6/30/2017 $1.00
F18010889 1/19/2018 $450.00
F18020481 2/13/2018 $14.49
F18080162 8/6/2018 $0.50

 
 Fingerprints were taken for 29 citizens by the Property and Evidence Section and 

Police Volunteers this month. The prints included volunteers, employee applicants 
and private citizens. 



 

 

Operations/Patrol 
 
The Operations/Patrol Division is under the direction of Lt. Terry Tryon, and he has attended the 
following meetings during the month of February: 

 Town Council Meetings 
 FPD Management Team Meetings 
 Weekly FPD Administrative Meetings 
 Workflow Committee Meeting 
 Alliance to Combat Transnational Threat – Field Area 2 (ACTT FA-2) Planning Meeting 

 
 
 
Professional Standards 
No complaints received. 

No Internal Administrative Investigations initiated. 

No use of force reports for February. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Criminal Investigations Unit 
 

# of new cases assigned in February: 5 
Observed 
Offense 

Assigned 
Detective 

Case 
Status Notes: 

Sex Offense (Juvenile)  J. Ballard  OPEN 
Suspect identified and interviewed waiting on victim’s 
parent for a decision on whether to file charges 

Sex Offense (Juvenile)  J. Ballard  Closed 

Report from DCS (mandatory reporter) of 
inappropriate sexual behavior between siblings.  
Parent interviewed incident is being handled through 
counselling  

Threatening  D. Helsdingen 
Closed 
(TOT) 

Gang threats against Arizona Department of 
Corrections employee being handled in town by FLPD 
and at his residence by Superior PD & PCSO 

Narcotics  D. Helsdingen  Closed  

A reported by a physician of fraudulent prescription 
being filed at Safeway in Anthem.  Safeway 
pharmacist has no record of patient or prescription 
being filled 

Domestic Violence  D. Helsdingen  Closed 
Suspect arrested search warrant on cell phone 
completed 

# of cases carried over into February: 10 
Observed 
Offense 

Assigned 
Detective 

Case 
Status Notes: 

Hit & Run  D. Helsdingen  OPEN 

Witness came forward with information‐report 
completed and forwarded Charges to PCA, PCA 
requesting additional investigation 

Dangerous Drugs/Child 
Abuse  D. Helsdingen  Closed  Plea deal on both suspects‐probation 

Accident with Injuries (Hit 
& Run)  D. Helsdingen  Closed 

Suspect and vehicle located search warrant on vehicle 
completed Victim does not remember accident has 
not decided to pursue charges medical records from 
victim obtained cases appears to be handle through 
civil attorneys 

Sex Offense (PREA)  D. Helsdingen  Closed 

Detainee reported being raped‐SANE exam 
completed, Search Warrant for DNA done, detainer 
issued on suspect waiting on DPS report‐suspect 
arrested on a $250,000.00 bond 

Sex Offense  D. Helsdingen  OPEN 

Victim returned from California‐interviewed 
completed‐workup on suspects sent to DPS Felony 
charges forth coming 

Assault/Disorderly 
Conduct‐fighting  D. Helsdingen  Closed 

Prison case several suspects identified victim had 
minor injuries misdemeanor charges filed 

Sex Offense (PREA)  D. Helsdingen  Closed 

Inmate reported he was rape by four subjects. SANE 
examine completed buccal swabs obtained from 
suspects.  Victim later admitted to lying.  Received 
CAFCC packet  

Sex Offense (PREA)  D. Helsdingen  Closed 
Sex Assault Kit and CAFCC investigation determined 
unfounded 

Sex Offense/Suspicious 
Act  L. Gaston  Closed 

Unfounded victim’s report was inconsistent with 
medical reported from Chandler Regional Hospital 



 

 

Sexual Abuse  D. Helsdingen  OPEN 

Confidential Felony Charging packet completed, and 
charges have been approved follow‐up investigation 
continuing/ still waiting on call back from victim  

# of joint cases worked in February: 4 
Observed 
Offense 

Assigned Detective 
Primary/Secondary 

Case 
Status Notes: 

Sex Offense (Juvenile)  L. Gaston/D. Helsdingen  Closed 
Child disclosed/suspect invoked prior to questioning 
PCA declined charges 

Homicide  D. Helsdingen/L. Gaston  OPEN  1st Degree Murder Charges Filed 

Sex Offense (Juvenile)  L. Gaston/D. Helsdingen  OPEN 

Several female subjects disclosed inappropriate sexual 
abuse. Grand Jury indictment currently in pre‐trial 
status‐possible change of plea to dismissed capacity  

Sex Assault/Sex Abuse  L. Gaston/D. Helsdingen  OPEN 

Reported long time sexual abuse from Illinois to AZ 
ending in Florence. Working with LE in Illinois search 
warrant on residence suspect arrested. Suspect 
rearrested on Agency Assist felony warrant from 
Illinois. Suspect currently in custody awaiting 
extradition.   Images of Child pornography found on 
suspect’s computer additional charges being filed 

Other Activity: 
D. Helsdingen  OIS Training 

D. Helsdingen  FA2 meeting 

L. Gaston/D. Helsdingen  Meeting FHS mandatory reporting 

D. Helsdingen  Grand Jury  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Beat 1 

 
 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat 1 Supervisor – Sgt. D. Peterson 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat 1 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 417 
Total number of traffic stops: 110 
Total number of accident reports taken: 11, of which 5 were on private property 
Total number of citations issued: 18 for 25 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against Persons 
Assault: 7 
Sexual assault: 1 
 
Property Crimes 
Criminal damage: 2 
Shoplifting: 1 
Theft: 1 
 
Monthly Activities 
Total calls for service were down from last month (484). Person crimes (8) were down from last 
month (9). Property crimes (4) were down from last month (8). Six (6) of the reported index 
crimes (12) during this time period occurred in detention facilities. Officers in Beat 1 conducted 
directed patrols in the areas of previously reported crimes. Officers also conducted field 



 

 

interviews of persons throughout Beat 1 and inquired if there was any knowledge of any crimes 
being committed. The directed patrols and field interviews were utilized to gather information / 
suspects and also to provide a presence in the community to help deter additional crimes. There 
were 24 warrant arrests in Beat 1 during the month. 

In addition to normal patrol, officers also conducted 128 directed patrols of businesses, 
apartment complexes, Florence Gardens and Caliente communities and the prisons. 

Community Involvement and Education 
Area schools were open during the month. Officers continued their visits to schools and grounds 
to prevent and / or detect any crimes. Officers were also assigned to schools to monitor 
crosswalks and school speed zones. 

Special Events 
Historic Florence Home Tour 2019 took place on February 9th. The reported attendance was 
higher than previous years.   

Florence Prison Run 2019 took place on February 10th. This was the Hells                                                       
Angels 36th Annual Prison Run in Florence.   

Upcoming Special Events 
None 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Sex Offense reported on S. Park Street – A teacher reported (third party) that two of her female 
students were playing dress up (not at school) and being videotaped by two boys from the same 
class. This case is under investigation. 

Assault reported on E. Diversion Dam Road – Two juvenile male inmates were involved in a fist 
fight with each other. Charges have been forwarded to the court. 

Assault reported on N. Pinal Parkway – During a medical transport, a male inmate spit two times 
on a Corrections Officer. The inmate then advised the officer that he has HIV. Charges have 
been forwarded to the court. 

Assault reported on N. Pinal Parkway – One male inmate punched a second male inmate in the 
head causing a minor injury. Charges have been forwarded to the court. 

Assault reported on N. Pinal Parkway – Awaiting information from the prison. 

Assault reported on N. Pinal Parkway – A male responded to the gas station to pick up his wife 
upon her release from jail. When he told her that he was not supposed to have any contact with 
her she became angry. She then kicked him two times in his face and poured her soda over his 
head. She then drove away without him. Charges have been forwarded to the court.  

Assault reported on N. Pinal Parkway – A former male inmate alleges that he was assaulted 
while incarcerated in September 2018. Charges forwarded for simple assault to the court. 



 

 

Assault reported on E. Diversion Dam Road – Two juvenile male inmates were involved in a fist 
fight with each other, no injuries reported. The juveniles and their respective parents refused to 
proceed with pressing charges. 

Theft reported on E. Stewart Street - A female agreed to sell a cell phone online for $725.00.  
She then mailed the phone to Macon, Georgia and awaited her PayPal payment. When no 
payment was received, she called the police. PayPal was unable to assist her due to there being 
no accounts in the other person’s name. Local authorities in Georgia had no contacts or leads for 
any person(s) using the receiving party’s information. 

Shoplifting reported on N. Pinal Parkway – An unknown male entered the store and took a 
cigarette lighter valued at $1.78. He then fled the store on foot. Officers were unable to locate or 
identify the suspect. 

Criminal Damage reported on E. Butte Avenue – A homeowner reported that an unknown person 
spray-painted graffiti on a brick wall of the residence. The word “HOME” was written. Photos 
were taken as evidence. The homeowner will prosecute if the suspect is identified.  

Criminal Damage reported on E. 1st Street – An employee of Regional Pavement Maintenance 
reported that after they poured a new concrete sidewalk at this location, someone came along and 
wrote “NEAL” and “CKE” in the fresh pavement. There were also several shoe prints which 
were of a small size (indicating possibly children). The employee further stated they would try 
and buff out the damage but if it had to be re-done it would cost approximately $1500.00. 

Accident reported on S. Main Street at Hwy 287 – A southbound vehicle was struck by an 
eastbound vehicle that had passed the stop sign. The at-fault driver was cited. 

Accident Private Property reported on N. Jason Lopez Circle – Two cars in the court parking lot 
bumped each other. The drivers exchanged information.  

Accident Private Property reported on E. Ocotillo Drive – A vehicle that was backing out of a 
driveway struck a parked vehicle. The drivers exchanged information. 

Accident Private Property reported on N. Pinal Parkway – While in the prison parking lot, two 
vehicles bumped into each other. The drivers exchanged information. 

Accident reported on S. Main Street at Hwy 287 – A southbound vehicle was struck by an 
eastbound vehicle that had passed the stop sign. The at-fault driver was cited. 

Accident Private Property reported on N. Main Street – Two vehicles bumped into each other in 
the Post Office parking lot. The drivers exchanged information. 

Accident Private Property reported on N. Jason Lopez Circle – Two vehicles bumped into each 
other in the court parking lot. The drivers exchanged information. 

Accident reported on N. Pinal Parkway at the Gila Bridge – A male reported that as he crossed 
the Gila Bridge, he hit some ice which caused his vehicle to slide. He struck the guard rail and 
caused minor damage to his vehicle. 



 

 

Accident reported on N. Pinal Parkway at Florence Blvd – A male reported that while he was 
driving northbound on N. Pinal Parkway he ran over some ice and his vehicle slid into the guard 
rail.   

Accident reported on N. Pinal Parkway – A vehicle pulled out of the restaurant parking lot in 
front of northbound traffic.  A northbound vehicle struck this vehicle causing minor damage. The 
at-fault driver was cited. 

Accident reported on E. Diversion Dam Road – A male reported that while he was traveling 
westbound on E. Diversion Dam Road, he had to skid out of the way to avoid hitting a cow in the 
roadway. However, when he passed the first cow, he then drove into a second cow that was on 
the roadway. The driver was transported to the hospital for back and groin pain.   

Training 
Legal update training provided. 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Beat 2 

 
 
Beat Statistics 
Beat 2 Supervisor – Sgt. D. Campbell 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat 2 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 111 
Total number of traffic stops: 24 
Total number of accident reports taken: 1 
Total number of citations issued: 8 for 9 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against Persons: 
Assault: 1 
Sexual assault: 2 
 
Property Crimes:  
None 
 



 

 

Monthly Activities 
During the month of February, crime decreased in the area of thefts and criminal damage calls 
for service. Due to multiple arrests, no current cases of theft’s or burglaries have been reported. 
FPD increased directed patrols and conducted various field interviews during the month 

Citations were issued for speeding, expired registration, vehicles not having mandatory 
insurance, passing a stop sign and driving without a license.  

Community Involvement and Education 
Officers conducted 29 directed patrols of the local business and issuing warning citations for 
parking violations (2) to include (2) Field Interviews. FLPD has been conducting stationary 
surveillance on various locations to determine narcotic activity. Beat #2 Officers conducted 14 
separate investigations regarding suspicious activity. 

Special Events 
Main Street Car Show.  A large crowd turned out with no calls of service reported.  

Upcoming Special Events 
None 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Sex Offense: FPD responded to Florence High School (FHS) on South Main Street in reference 
to a sex offense. During the investigation, a male subject inappropriately touched two female 
students in their private parts while clothed. As the investigation continued, FHS Staff was still 
determining if the juvenile would be suspended. FPD is continuing with the investigation as 
contact still needs to be completed with the male subject for a statement.  

Assault: FPD responded to FHS on South Main Street in reference to an assault. During the 
investigation, a male subject hit a female three times. During the investigation, the female 
subject had an old picture of the male claiming he was gay as he was hugging another male. The 
female threatened to post the picture on social media unless the male openly admitted that he was 
gay. At the conclusion of the investigation, both students were suspended, and charges submitted 
to Florence Magistrate for assault, disorderly conduct and harassment.   

Theft:  FPD responded Family Dollar located on West Highway 287 in reference to a theft. FPD 
arrived on scene and contacted the store manager and two female subjects leaving the store. 
During the investigation the alleged suspect was placing things in her purse as she was shopping. 
She eventually for all items but forgot about magnets located in the bottom of her purse. The 
female was advised it’s illegal to conceal items within a purse with the intent to not purchase all 
items. This case was closed without charges per the store manager.  

Sex Offense: FPD responded to FHS on South Main Street in reference to a sex offense. During 
the investigation, a female subject was providing fellatio to two different students and was 
bragging about it. FPD intervened as there was allegedly an 18-year-old student involved, as the 
female is only 15 years of age. This case is still under investigation by FPD’s Detective Division.  

 



 

 

Training 
Officers were provided information on local events to including providing them with daily 
briefings on recent intelligence and training videos. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Beat 3 

 
 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat 3 Supervisor – Sgt. S. Morris 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat 3 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic):  277 
Total number of traffic stops: 152 
Total number of accident reports taken: 3 
Total number of citations issued: 38 for 66 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 

Crimes against Persons: 
Domestic: 1 
Sex assault: 1  
 
Property Crimes: 
Criminal damage: 1 
Theft: 1 
 



 

 

Monthly Activities 
For the month of February, the total calls for service was 277, compared to 346 in January. A 
19.94 % decrease. No influx of major crime. A total of 75 directed patrols were conducted.  

The Juvenile Detention Log was completed as required by state law. The FPD detained two 
juveniles for the month of February.  

The speed signs logged the following data: 

The Main Street speed sign for southbound traffic. 86,609 vehicles. Average speed was 
32 mph. Speed limit is 35 mph. 33,240 were between 33-38 mph. 4,631 were between 
39-44 mph, and 367 were 45-50 mph.  

Anthem/ Hunt Highway, - The speed sign for westbound traffic. 109,063 vehicles. 
Average speed was 37 mph. Speed limit is 45 mph. 2383 were between 33-38 mph. 
13,053 were between 39-44 mph, and 35,748 were 45-50 mph. 16,236 vehicles were 50 
and above. 

The portable speed sign #2 was placed on Butte by the prison complex, and #3 was 
placed on main street extension for north bound traffic for a two-week period.  

For the month of February, traffic enforcement in Beat 3 consisted of 152 traffic offenses, with 
38 citations, and 66 violations. 

Community Involvement and Education 
Beat 3 Sergeant Morris met with the Sheriff and Chief Deputy at PCSO in reference to the 
graffiti abatement program. The service truck is being repaired and an MOU is being put 
together by PCSO staff. 

The beat three officers continue to look for code enforcement violations and have been enforcing 
parking violations. Only two parking violations given in February. The officers continue to 
monitor the school zones every morning and afternoon, monitoring traffic, and student pickup 
and drop-off.  

Special Events 
None 

Upcoming Special Events 
None 

Significant Calls for Service 
W. Desert Blossom Way – A juvenile got in trouble at school and when his mother confronted 
him about it the juvenile punched several holes in the walls of his home. He was arrested for 
criminal damage DV and confined at Juvenile detention.  

W. Millerton Way – Two juvenile bothers ages 10 and 14 were discovered by their father having 
inappropriate sexual contact with each other. Case is being handled within the family. 



 

 

N. Hunt Hwy – A female victim left her bicycle outside of Safeway while she was shopping. 
When she returned, the bike was gone. After further investigation, the bike was located, and a 
juvenile male was identified as a suspect. No charges filed. Bike was a $500 Pro GT.  

N. Spyglass Dr. – The victim’s car was in the driveway, and it was discovered that someone had 
keyed the front bumper, hood and side of her Chevy Cobalt. No suspects or witnesses. 

Two accidents with injuries occurred at Hunt Hwy and Merrill Ranch Pkwy. One was a single 
vehicle accident whereas the driver had a medical emergency and drove his truck off the road 
striking a pole. He was transported via ambulance.  

A two-vehicle accident occurred at Hunt and Merrill Ranch. Minor injuries.  

One other minor accident at Palmer and Attaway. No injuries.  

Training 
Officer uniforms were inspected this month, with no discrepancies noted. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

K-9 Unit 

How many officers assigned to K-9 unit: (1) K9 Murphy  

Total number of vehicle stops: K9 Murphy 75 vehicle stops 

Total number of K-9 Utilizations: K9 Murphy 4 utilizations 

Total number of vehicle hand searches: 4 

Total amount of narcotic seizures (weight): 7.2 grams 

Type of Drug Amount in Weight 

Narcotics 9.8 gram 

Prescription Drugs 0 

Paraphernalia 10 individual items 

 

Officer Murphy attended weekly K9 detection along with the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office K9 
Unit Training Unit. Officer Murphy’s service dog Rexo, detected marijuana, cocaine, 
methamphetamine and heroin without incident. Officer Murphy is certified through the National 
Canine Audit Tracking (NCAT) Systems using K9 Rexo.       

During the month of February, K9 Murphy self-initiated (75) cases which included vehicle stops, 
field interviews and on-view criminal activity.   

Traffic Stop:  Officer Murphy participated in Operation Stonegarden which is a federal grant to 
suppress narcotic and human trafficking located in the southwest portion of Pinal County. During 
a traffic stop in the area of SR84 and White and Parker Road, he located 3.0 grams of 
methamphetamine. During the investigation, the male driver was deported three prior times for 
violent felonies. The suspect was processed and booked into Pinal County Sheriff’s Office Adult 
Detention Center without incident.  

Traffic Stop:  Officer Murphy conducted a traffic stop in the area of Florence Kelvin and Quail 
Run. During the stop, the odor of marijuana was coming from the vehicle along with information 
that driver had a valid warrant. The driver was arrested, and Officer Murphy located 4.2 grams of 
marijuana within the cab of the truck. The driver was arrested, processed and booked into Pinal 
County Sheriff’s Office Adult Detention Center without incident.  

School Search: Officer Murphy along with K9 Rexo arrived at Florence K-8 to conduct a school 
search. During the search a vape pen was located with a THC cartridge. The juvenile was 
suspended, and contraband submitted into Florence Police Department Evidence Division. 

Traffic Stop:  Officer Murphy conducted a traffic stop in the area of Hunt Highway and Franklin 
Road. During the traffic stop investigation, 8 vape cartridges with THC were located. The driver 
was arrested and processed without incident.    



 

 

Volunteers 
 

The Florence Volunteers put in a total of 166.25 hours for the month of February. There was a 
total of 11 volunteers that donated their time this month. The Victim Services Unit was not 
utilized this month. The volunteers continue to assist the police department with fingerprinting, 
funeral escorts, and any special events hosted by the Town of Florence. The volunteer program is 
actively involved in house watches, school zones and business checks. There were eight 3511 
hearings this month, conducted by a volunteer. The vehicles were released to their respective 
owners and tow companies, and a total of $600.00 was collected for fees.  

 

 
Grants 

 GOHS Radars ordered for FY2019 
 GOHS FY2020 proposal completed. Requesting the following: 

o $10,000 DUI enforcement overtime compensation 
o $10,000 occupant safety enforcement overtime compensation 
o $15,000 for distracted driving and speed enforcement overtime compensation 

 
The following are statistics reported to GOHS for both special events and sustained (regular) 
activity: 
 

Total citations for the month of February 2019 -  
Total traffic contacts for the month of February 2019 -  

Type of Citation Total Number
Civil traffic 81
Criminal traffic 9
DUI 1
DUI Drugs 0
Other (CT, CR,CV) 8

 
 
 

Training  

Efforts are continually made by the training staff to incorporate and provide quality training to 
all FPD officers. FPD staff has worked diligently to reduce training costs by providing required 
internal training.  

 

Traffic 

Total number of Citations issued for the department: 64 for 100 violations 
 



 

 

 
Directed Patrols 
The Police Department conducted 231 directed patrols during February. Directed patrols are a 
proactive, police-initiated, approach which focuses patrol resources on the places with highest 
risks of serious crime to increase crime prevention. Statistics have proven that an increased pro-
active patrol in high crime areas has decreased crimes. 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE  
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

444 N. Warner Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 

Office:  520-868-7614 
FAX:  520-868-7546 

MEMO 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2019 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Christopher A. Salas, Development Services Director/Town Engineer 
1 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report – April 1, 2019 
 

 
SUBJECT:   Staff Report 
 
Engineering Division: 
 

APS Solar Covered Parking  
 Submitted Library/Community Center design proposal for FY’19 consideration 
 Would allow APS to construct a 108-space car covered parking area, roof being made 

of solar panels. Approximate kW yield is 270 kW 
 Action pending 2019 eligibility consideration from APS 

 
Kokopelli Moon Saloon – Pre Demolition 

 Breinholt Contracting won the bid and Council approved 3.4.2019 
 Permit has been pulled 
 Adobe Technologies – experts on adobe installation – will need patching 

 
Cuen Building – Pre Demolition 

 Asbestos and Lead Paint Testing has been ordered, samples taken, waiting for results 
 

CFD Feasibility 
 Wilson & Company – ON CALL Engineers 

 
Cox Irrigation Ditch 

 Preliminary ditch design received from EPS, forwarded to SCIDD for review 
 3/4/19 Still waiting on SCIDD 
 Pursuing alternative approvals via direct consultation with affected landowners 

 
Anthem at Merrill Ranch 

 Unit 52 approved for Letter of Acceptance 
 
 



 

2 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report – April 1, 2019 
 

Florence Hospital Drainage 
 Dibble Eng. in dialog with Baxter Design to assess drainage issues and search 

for original Drainage Report. Town does not have this report 
 4/1/19 No updates 

 
SCIDD Canal Sunrise Estates 

 SCIDD performed aerial survey (UAV) early December, pending survey results to 
determine Towns participation in resolving severe erosion issues – nothing new 
to report 

 4/1/19 Still awaiting response from SCIDD  
 Approximately 700 cubic yards of soil acquired from FUDS baseball field project 

and placed on Langley 3 property for use as backfill 
 

CAG EPC (Environmental Protection Committee) 
 Next scheduled meeting May 2019 

 
EVIT (East Valley Transportation Committee) 

 Next scheduled meeting April 26, 2019 
 

CIP T-60 - E. 1st Street Pavement (HURF Bond) 
 Started January 21, 2019 
 Project continues on-track despite weather delays 

 
Facilities Maintenance: 
 

Public Works Building 
 Fire Suppression System 

o Council approved 1/7/2019 
o Notice to Proceed sent to 315 Fire Protection Services 
o Pre-con scheduled on 1/28/2019 
o Work started 2/19/19 
o Installation complete – final inspection 3.29.2019 

 Fleet skylights – Complete 
 

Town Hall  
 Materials for French Drain – Complete 
 Ceiling work – paint – waiting to schedule 
 Remaining carpet replacement – ON HOLD 
 Centimark – fix roof leaks – pending funding 
 Touch up painting for Customer Service counter – pending funding 

 
Senior Center 

 Overhang repair estimated approximately- $5000, pending funding source 
 
 



 

3 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report – April 1, 2019 
 

Safety Walkthroughs 
 Southwest Risk & Town staff completed on 1/10/19, Departments are currently working 

on addressing identified issues 
 
Community Services Building  

 No work scheduled 
 

Fire Station #1 
 Touch up painting 

o Hallway, restroom 1111 and kitchen 
 

Fire Station #2 
 Apparatus Bay Doors 1 & 3 – received wrong doors, correct on their way 

 
Fitness Center 

 Roof – Completed 
 Electrical Panel – Completed 
 Fire Alarm – scheduled for late March 
 Ceiling work – paint – waiting to schedule 
 Flooring – obtaining updated proposal 

 
Police Department 
 
IT Building 
 
Silver King 

 Motley Design Group – providing egress designs 
o Electric 
o Fire suppression 
o Door hardware 

 Budgetary figures for repairs and deck surface have been received with exception of 
optional budgetary figures for stamped/colored concrete for west deck 

 
McFarland 

 Fire panel – Completed 
 
Fleet Services: 
 

Monthly Work Orders 
 Preventative Maintenance (PM’s) – 13 
 Other Services – 37 
 Total vehicles serviced – 50 

 
Streets (HURF) Division: 
 

Roads 
 Crack sealing streets in prep for HA5 Project 



 

4 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report – April 1, 2019 
 

 Patched potholes 
 Blading drainage ditches throughout Town 

 
Hunt Highway Project  

 
Water Division: 

 
SCADA Upgrade 

 To coordinate between well sites 
 Fill tanks at night for energy savings 
 Need operational plans and programming 

 
Well Meter Calibration  

 Professional testing of well meters – COMPLETED – Tested Accurate 
 

WIFA 
 Staff attended 2-day training session for Water Loss 

 
Wastewater Division: 
 

SWWTP SAM Rebuild 
 Electrician assessed 

 
SWWTP Maintenance 

 Pista Grit – waiting for parts 
 

NWWTP Maintenance 
 3/4/2019 – Western Environmental – headworks delivery still pending 

 
Sanitation: 

RAD Service Orders 
 Town 33 pickups of bulk trash 
 Florence Gardens 37 pickups of bulk trash 
 Anthem had 102 pickups of bulk trash                                                

 
Capital Improvement Projects: 
 

CIP GG-25 - Silver King Balcony Repairs 
 Motley Design Group – providing egress designs 

o Electric 
o Fire suppression 
o Door hardware 

 Budgetary figures for repairs and deck surface have been received with exception of 
optional budgetary figures for stamped/colored concrete for west deck 

 
CIP GG-26 - Signal Light @ SR79 & Hunt Highway 

 ADOT Traffic study is complete 



 

5 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report – April 1, 2019 
 

 Meeting to occur with ADOT to discuss project options 
 3/4/2019 No new updates 

 
CIP GG-29 – Territory Square Expansion – Phase 1 

 Extend 8” waterline within Main Street @ Town Hall 
 Funds not available until FY 19/20 

 
CIP PSP-18 - HVAC @ Police Department 

 Three units replaced after failures in FY16/17, remaining two are newer and are not 
scheduled for replacement in 17/18 

 
CIP SU-06 – Wastewater Main Extensions & Replacements 

 Funds not available in FY 18/19, budget being reviewed 
 
CIP SU-13 – Wastewater Main Extension (Main Interceptor / Lift Station) NORTH 

 Bar Screen and Compactor on order as of 10/19/18 
 Grit chamber will remain 

 
CIP SU-20 – Recharge Facility 

 Council approved on 1/7/2019  
 Notice to Proceed sent to Scholz Contracting and Jayco (Earth Moving) 
 Project started 1/22/2019 
 2/14/19 Earthwork COMPLETED by Jayco 
 3/4/19 Scholz to start piping work mid March 

 
CIP SU-83 – SCADA Tie-Ins – Wastewater Controls 

 SOW provided 9/13/18 
 As of 3/4/19 – Under review, searching for alternatives 

 
CIP SU-84 – Wastewater System Preservation 

 Ongoing 
 

CIP SU-85 - Recharge Permitting & Design 
 Design underway, permit application 
 ADWR Meeting June 26, 2018 

 
CIP SU-88 – SWWTP Expansion Headworks 

 10/19/18 – Construction documents to be submitted 
 Meeting with Engineering consultant and town – plans under review 
 Will be a formal bid solicitation 
 3/4/2019 No updates 

 
CIP SU-89 – WWTP Compliance / Permitting Equipment 

 Ongoing 
 

CIP SU-90 – SWWTP Improvement Modifications 



 

6 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report – April 1, 2019 
 

 Waiting for Bar Screen parts to arrive 
 Project ongoing 

 
CIP T-12 – Butte Avenue Bridge Replacement 

 11/9 Certified letter to all utilities 
 

CIP T-14 – Roundabout / Intersection Improvement SR 79B & SR287 
 MAG close out funds 

 
CIP T-28 – Hunt Highway Fire Station #2 Traffic Signal / Turn Lane 

 1st Phase design completed & reviewed 
 11/7/18 – Bid Tab approved to complete the next stage – Lee Engineering $10,925 
 4/1/2019 Pavement – Regional – RCA to Council 4/15/2019 

 
CIP T-41 – Pinal Street Drainage (aka Main Street Butte to Ruggles Ditch) 

 Formal bidding process followed 
 Notice to Proceed and project started by T Y Lin 

 
CIP T-60 - E. 1st Street Pavement (HURF Bond) 

 Approved by Council on 10/15/2018 – Regional Pavement 
 

CIP WU-23 - 2B Outfitting 
 Approved by Council on 11/5/2018 – Coolidge Engine & Pump 
 Work Completed – pending final testing 

 
CIP WU-25 – Water Line Relocation 

 Relocate 12” water line outside of INS property 
 Funds not available until FY 22/23 

 
CIP WU-38 - Water Line Replacements 

 Westland Resources to complete design, ADEQ permitting, utility location and 
construction documents 

 8” Water Line Extension (Elizabeth – Virginia – Orlando) – JOC Contract with 
Pine/Strawberry – Apache Underground 

 Approved by Council on 11/5/2018 $813,696.00 – Apache Underground 
 Work has started 

 
CIP WU-74 – Transmission Line & Pressure Zones 

 Report on feasibility of project and pump curves due by 11/1/2018 
 

CIP WU-83 – Downtown 12” Loop (CBDG) 
 Approved by Council on 10/15/18, Notice to Proceed to Apache Underground 
 Work almost completed 

 



 

7 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report – April 1, 2019 
 

CIP WU-84 – Well #4 Pump Inspection and Rebuild 
 KP Ventures – Rebuild portion of project – Testing Completed 

 
CIP WU-85 – Hydrant Replacement 

 Replace aging fire hydrants 
 Cooperative utilized for parts, Council approved on 5/21/2018 
 Work being completed in-house 
 Project is on-going  

 
CIP WU-86 – 8” Line Extension (410 feet) Willow to High School 

 7/1/2018 – Project ON HOLD until 3rd quarter FY 18/19 
 

CIP WU-87 – Line Extension on Adamsville Road (Quartz to 79B) 
 9/18/18 Project COMPLETED – line was extended to hydrant 

 
CIP WU-88 – Well Preservation 

 Well #5 – Cannot start until Well #4 is back on line 


	April 1, 2019 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Ordinance No. 671-19 Celaya Rezoning
	6b. National Library Week Proclamation
	6c. Promise of the Future Proclamation

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Lantis Fireworks Agreement Amendement
	7b. Zumar Industries, Inc. Contract
	7c. Fair Housing Proclamation
	7d. Warrant Register

	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8a. Resolution No. 1692-19 Signatories
	8b. Apache Underground Contract

	10. MANAGER'S REPORT
	10. Manager's Report

	11. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	11a. Community Development Report
	11b. Community Services Report
	11c. Courts Report
	11d. Finance Report
	11e. Fire Report
	11f. Police Report
	11g. Public Works Report




